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Financial Highlights

Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2019 &#EZZF-AF=A=+-BLFEXAE
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Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2019

Revenue (HK$'M)
Was (B&EHETT)

* Revenue
¢ Profit before income tax

e Shareholders’ fund as at 31 March 2019

* Basic earnings per share

Revenue (HK$’000)
Operating profit (HK$’000)
Profit before income tax (HK$’000)

Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$’000)

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)
Interim dividend per share declared and paid (HK cents)

Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents)

Net asset value (HK$'000)
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Profit attributable Net asset value (HK$'M)
to shareholders (HK$'M) BEFE (BESHET)
RE R (BEBT)
BE - NE=-ZA=1+—-HLEE%£E
o g3 HK$539.8 million 539.8E&ETT
o BRATBBIANER HK$19.3 million 19.388ET
‘RIE-NAE=ZA=+—HREESE HK$462.9 million 462 9B EETT
e BIREAREF HK2.51 cents 2.51 784l
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Wz (F#T) 539,758 584,720
LRI (FHBT) 20,306 54,380
MRATEBADER (T8 ) 19,349 53,582
BRERELER (FET) 15,085 44,194
FREAGET (GBAL) 2.51 7.36
EERRXFERPBRE GBWL) 1.0 1.0
EERSRARERE GBI 15 25
EEFE(TAER 462,876 479,211



Chairman’s Statement FE#HEE

DearShareholders,

| am pleased to; present the annual report for the year ended 31
March 2019.

Growth of major economies, as more integrated than ever before,
have slowed down due to economic turbulences as a result of trade
disputes among these major economies, the dispute of which has
yet to be resolved politically. The trade war between the United
States and the Peoples’ Republic of China has radiated to these
major economies and has impacted on the stock markets, and the
sentiment of uncertainty of the economic outcome has dampened
economic growth since the end of 2018. Against this backdrop, it
appears that there is hopeful signal or sign that both governments
would try to improve the trade tensions. The market sentiment has
made major central banks to critically review the monetary policies
in the mid-2019, which in turn adding uncertainties to business
investment and consumer spending.

In Hong Kong, it is expected that, as in previous years, small flats
will continue to dominate in the primary housing market given high
property price levels per square feet due to the relatively low
consumer confidence as a result of the uncertainty of the economic
growth due to trade/tariffs wars among the major economies
despite the Hong Kong Government’s determination in increasing
new supply. Nevertheless, the rising demand for quality home
fittings remains steady irrespective of the size of flat units, and thus
we leverage on our competitive strength in products that we shall
continually review our product mix in order to provide the market
with the choices of a range of quality products.

We have kept and will continue to keep vigilant to market
fluctuations and maintain the disciplined approach in operation. Our
flexibility will continue to facilitate the optimal operation in changing
business conditions in order to control cost pressures. The current
and quick ratios were 2.8 (2018: 2.7) and 1.5 (2018: 1.6)
respectively. We shall continue to closely observe market trends,
capitalise on our strengths and adjust our strategies accordingly.

The management would like to thank you for the support and trust,
as well as the loyalty and efforts of our dedicated staff. Their
contributions have been indispensable for the Group’s development
during the past years, and its prospects for the years to come.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

26 June 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis EBE:wmED T

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing, wholesale,
retail and installation of architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom,
kitchen collections and furniture in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

A business review of the Group and an analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators during the
year are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis.
Further-details will be provided in the Company’s Annual Report
2019. In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental
policies and performance and an account of the Group’s key
relationships; with its employees, customers, suppliers and others
that have a significant impact on the Group and on which the
Group’s success depends will be provided in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the Annual Report 2019.

Details of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set
out in the Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) will be provided in the Corporate Governance
Report of the Annual Report 2019. Save as disclosed herein,
during the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has complied
with the requirements under the Listing Rule, the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) and the Cayman Islands
Companies Law.

During the year, the number of residential units completed in Hong
Kong climbed to a record high in the decade and then slowed down
towards the end of the financial year. Small- and medium-sized
flats remained prevailing in new housing supply; home fittings at
lower unit price were preferred over high-end products.

Pursuant to the announcement on 2 November 2016, the Company
considered a proposed spin-off and separate listing of the Group’s
kitchen and furniture business on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Spin-off”). The Board
subsequently announced, on 8 March 2019, that the proposed
Spin-off would not be further considered. Details of the
announcements are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis E®EEs:

REVENUE REVIEW Wz Bl E

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s total turnover was BHZ-—Z—-hAF=A=+—HLFE F5EEEE
HK$539.8 million, representing a decrease of 7.7% as compared %¥%84530.8HEET  BEAFERD7.7%

with the previous year.

Revenue by business segment REBDIE D 2 W

Revenue from external customers

As a percentage
of sales (%)

HIHNEF s HEERE DL (%)
31 March 31 March
=A=t+-H =A=t+-8
2019 2018 Change 2019 2018
—E-hFE ZE-N\F gy —=E-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 (%)
FET FH&T
Architectural builders’ hardware, ZZE#RS - &4
bathroom collections REREM
and others 390,722 434,565 (10.1) 72.4 74.3
Kitchen collection and furniture  EERHR KR 149,036 150,155 (0.8) 27.6 25.7
539,758 584,720 (7.7) 100.0 100.0
Profitability by business segment REBHHE D Z2BFIEEN
Reportable segment gross profit Gross profit margin (%)
AIERZ D EHEF EFIE (%)
2019 2018 Change 2019 2018
—E-hEFE ZE-NF By —T—hEF —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000 (%)
THET FET
Architectural builders’ hardware, Z&E#R4 - 14
bathroom collections Rk EAM
and others 164,833 171,200 (3.7) 42.2 39.4
Kitchen collection and furniture  BEEZRER R 45,971 68,101 (32.5) 30.8 45.4
210,804 239,301 (11.9) 39.1 40.9

Revenue from the architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom ZE£5 € -  FARBREMIBZWRBREFHD
collections and others segment decreased by 10.1% to HK$390.7 10.1%Z390.7BBEB T (= —/\F 4346 HES
million (2018: HK$434.6 million) as compared to the previous year. 7)o FifEEHEUP/NEBMHE » WRAFE -

i

With small- and medium-sized homes being the majority of new HEZEMEEENTIEREREEERASHN
housing supply, the demand for home fittings in plain and space- {EEZELEHl - REAFER  KMAREHEN - Grand
saving design, low unit prices remained significant in our product Montara - SRR R#E  AELZHEHEER °

mix. During the year, we supplied for projects such as Centra
Horizon, Grand Montara, Poggibonsi and The Consonance.

mﬁm&m&@azngﬁa
7.



Management Discussion and Analysis EBE:wmED T

REVENUE REVIEW (conTD)

Revenue from the kitchen collection and furniture segment slightly
decreased by 0.8% to HK$149.0 million (2018: HK$150.2 million)
as compared to the previous year. Budget concern for high-end
kitchen cabinets and wardrobes became more evident in both
premium retail and luxury home projects, which is in line with the
conservative investing and spending sentiment in view of the
weakening wealth effect. During the year, we supplied products for
projects like Cullinan West 1l and Ontolo.

The overall gross profit of the Group amounted to HK$210.8 million
(2018: HK$239.3 million), representing a decrease of 11.9% from
the previous year. The overall gross profit margin slightly
decreased to 39.1% from 40.9% due to the drop in gross profit ratio
from the kitchen collection and furniture segment.

The Group’s operating profit was HK$20.3 million (2018: HK$54.4
million), representing a decrease of 62.7% from the prior year. The
amount of administrative expenses and distribution costs increased
by 1.9% to HK$189.5 million (2018: HK$186.0 million) mainly due
to a onetime relocation of a flagship showroom and its related
expenses. We have strived hard to control costs and maintain
effective use of resources to stay competitive in the market.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continues to expand its business in Hong Kong and the
PRC while adopting a prudent financial management policy. The
current ratio and quick ratio are 2.8 (2018: 2.7) and 1.5 (2018: 1.6),
respectively. Cash and cash equivalents approximated HK$66.4
million as at 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$62.4 million).

Inventories slightly increased to HK$169.5 million (2018: HK$168.5
million). The trade, retention and other receivables decreased to
HK$138.6 million (2018: HK$189.9 million), while the trade and other
payables decreased to HK$38.7 million (2018: HK$51.3 million).

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has a net cash position. Gearing
ratio is therefore not applicable (2018: same). The interest-bearing
borrowings of the Group decreased to HK$36.6 million (2018:
HK$41.4 million) as at 31 March 2019.

Treasury Policy

Borrowings, cash and cash equivalents are primarily denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and Euro. During the year, the Group
entered into certain forward contracts to buy Euro for settlement of
purchases. The management will continue to monitor the foreign
exchange risk exposure of the Group.

Uk #= [B] B8 (@)

FEREREMAI BB REREFEMEL0.8%F
1490 BB TL(ZZE—N\F 1502888 ) H
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REBEBEENA2108FEBT(Z2—\F:
239.3EEET) REFRLD 11.9% - HREEXE
REMBDEB2ENET B WEEEFRHL40.9%
BB Z39.1% °

AEEREZFB203FEEBT(ZE—N\F 1544
BEBT)  BEFEHD62.7% THEAZR D HK
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Management Discussion and Analysis EBE:wmED

FINANCIAL REVIEW (conTD)

Contingent Liabilities

We seek to manage our cash flow and capital commitments
effectively to ensure that we have sufficient funds to meet our
existing and future cash requirements. We have not experienced
any difficulties in meeting our obligations as they become due.
Assets under charge include mortgaged property acquired. As at
31 March 2019, performance bonds of approximately HK$20.0
million (2018: HK$20.7 million) have been issued by the Group to
customers as security of contracts. In respect of which, no
restricted cash (2018: HK$3.0 million) was placed in bank as
security for the performance bonds. Save for the rental and capital
commitment of our retail outlets and warehouses and performance
bonds for projects, the Group has no other material financial
commitments and contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2019.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The macro-economic growth is expected to remain slow amid the
uncertain and complicated economic and political environment. The
trade war between the United States and the PRC will continue to
spill-over across nations and sectors around the globe. The trade
war was likely partly responsible for contractions in fixed investment
and goods export. Unless a trade deal is reached swiftly, the
outlook remains downbeat for this year. As Hong Kong is a small
and open economy, the local investment and consumer confidence
is expected to remain cautious in light of the volatile political and
economic landscape.

The Hong Kong Government’s proactive approach to address land
shortage and encourage quick releasing of flats for sale will impact
the supply of residential properties in the primary market. The
Government’s adjustment of public-private flat ratio from 60:40 to
70:30 may reduce the land allocated for private housing, limiting
the demand for high-end products. As it takes time to see the
effects of housing policies, we expect the trend of small flats will
continue and home prices will remain at a relatively high level, and
thus plain design and space-saving home fittings (which have a
lower unit price) will stay in high demand in building projects. For
luxury home projects, simplified ranges of premium brands may
become more popular. In addition, the Central Government of the
PRC unveiled the Outline Development Plan for the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area in February 2019, under
which Hong Kong would take an active role in the development of
this region; more growth opportunities in the region are expected.
Capitalising on our competence in product ranges and relationship
with well-established developers, we are closely monitoring market
trends and adjusting strategies accordingly.

mﬁm&m&@azngﬁa
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PROSPECTS (conTD)

In view of the spending attitude of the retail market, we will continue
to rationalise sales network to improve efficiency, and at the same
time to upgrade product display to enhance customer experience.
We will also continue to review our product mix, which has been
.enhanced with new brands and line-ups, in order to satisfy the
fgrowing demand for superior products at reasonable price.

~_..----factors that might have an impact to our business. The property

N
N

-,the Hong Kong property market environment will inevitably affect

.

10

markét‘ig affected by housing policies, global and local economic
performahqe, political environment, stability of global trade and
interest rate, economic performance of the PRC; and changes in

.....

"‘our business performance and results. We will continue to monitor

'market trends and refine our strategies to get prepared against
‘probable odds.
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Corporate Information 2 73

REGISTERED OFFICE
APPSR

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman

KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS
BMEBENRTEEEME

16th—18th Floors

First Commercial Building
33 Leighton Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

BB

EIRE 3358
F-EWEAE
16-18#&

AUDIT COMMITTEE
BEREES

Mr. Leung Kwong Kin, J.p. (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Wah, Dominic
Mr. Wan Sze Chung

RAEATFHL (EE)
BERE
BERLE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
FrWEES

Mr. Wong Wah, Dominic (Chairman)
Mr. Leung Kwong Kin, J.p.
Mr. Lau Shiu Sun

BHELLE (TFE)
RABATHL
Bl# L

S
K¢

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
REEES
Mr. Wong Wah, Dominic (Chairman)

Mr. Wan Sze Chung
Mr. Tse Sun Fat, Henry

BHERLE (XE)
BBRELE
HMIERE

COMPANY SECRETARY
NEME

Mr. Yu Chi Wah, crpa

AL A cPA

AUDITOR
D

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor Prince’s Building
Central

Hong Kong

BORKESTTENSESAT
&

IR

KFRE22#

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
RERK

Mr. Tse Hon Kit, Kevin
Mr. Yu Chi Wah, crpa

HEG K
BISE LA cPA

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
FERERNBFELRE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor
24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman

KY1-1110, Cayman Islands
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE
BEERERMBFELTDE

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

EERASERAT
BE

SR KRBER1835%
B 5418

LEGAL ADVISERS ON HONG KONG LAW
BB AR LA EE-

Pang, Wan & Choi, Solicitors

Suites 701-703, 7th Floor, Chinachem Tower
34-37 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS
FEFRIET

i

CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited

BEKERTERL A

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
EHRIT (BB BRQA

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited

BEELBELSHRITERAT

Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited
BB RITERAR
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Directors’ Report EEg# %

The Board of Directors is pleased to submit their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 158 to 159.

Details-of the .analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating ‘segment is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS; APPROPRIATIONS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 86 to 87.

Appropriations of profits and movements in the reserves of the
Group and of the Company during the year are set out in notes 28
and 33(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board declared and paid an interim dividend of HK1 cent per
share for the six months ended 30 September 2018 (for the six
months ended 30 September 2017: HK1 cent per share), totalling
HK$6,006,000 (for the six months ended 30 September 2017:
HK$6,006,000).

The Board has resolved to recommend, at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 10 September 2019, a
final dividend of HK1.5 cents per share for the year ended 31
March 2019 (for the year ended 31 March 2018: HK2.5 cents per
share) (the “Final Dividend”), totalling HK$9,009,000 (for the year
ended 31 March 2018: HK$15,015,000).

If it is duly approved by the members at the AGM, the Final
Dividend will be distributed to members, whose names appear on
the principal or branch register of members of the Company in the
Cayman Islands or Hong Kong respectively (collectively the
“Register of Members”) as at the close of business on 19
September 2019. The payment will be made on 9 October 2019.

During the year, the Board has approved and adopted a dividend
policy. Details of which are set out on page 52.

A 4o ﬁ,5§7*

ESEMAREBE-E-NF=ZA=+—-HLHF
ErESEREREELGEPBRE -
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REMBMARM T 28K 33(a) °

iz 5
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=+ HIEARER - B 1EL) - 536,006,000 T
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ER15BIL(BE=2E—N\E=B=+—BLFE":
FR258) » 539,009,000 T (BE==—N
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kAR RZ D M (G RREM ] 2 BRR - K
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed as follows:

(a) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 5 September 2019 to 10
September 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
right to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
on 4 September 2019.

(b) For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for
the Final Dividend, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from 18 September 2019 to 19 September
2019, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the Final
Dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with Tricor Abacus Limited
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 17 September 2019.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2019,
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to HK$64,305,000 (2018: HK$65,189,000). Under
Section 34 of the Companies Law (2018 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium is available for distribution to
shareholders, provided that no distribution shall be paid to
shareholders out of the Company’s share premium unless the
Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES

As at 31 March 2019, the Company indirectly held full interest in an
office property for investment purpose. The property is located at
19/F, First Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong. The property is held on long lease. Furthers
details of the properties held for investment purposes are set out in
the note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

The details of bank loans and borrowings as at 31 March 2019 are
set out in the note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$29,000.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.,.

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year and/or during
the period from the end of the financial year to the date of this
report are listed under the Section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management”.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, aged 62, is the Chairman of the
Company. He is a director of seven subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. TSE possesses over 30 years of experience in the trading of
building materials. He is responsible for the planning of the Group’s
overall strategies and the overall management of the Group.

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, aged 68, a founding member of the
Group, was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice Chairman
of the Company on 21 June 2012. He established his reputation in
the industry and has a wealth of experience in brand building, new
product development and structuring the management of the
Group. Mr. TSE is the cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the
Managing Director of the Company, and the father of Mr. TSE Hon
Kit, Kevin, the Deputy Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, aged 60, is the Managing Director of the
Company and joined the Group in 1979. He is a director of twenty-
three subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE possesses over 30
years of experience in the trading of building materials and is
responsible for the retail business of the Group. Mr. TSE also
assists in the strategic planning and management of the Group. He
is the brother of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the chairman of the
Board.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun, aged 51, joined the Group in 1994. Mr. LAU
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 10
December 2001. He is a director of one subsidiary of the Company.
He is responsible for project sales. Mr. LAU graduated from Hong
Kong Baptist University (formerly Baptist College) in 1992 with a
Bachelor’'s Degree of Science.

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, aged 39, is the Deputy Managing Director
of the Company and joined the Group in 2004. He was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 8 September 2008
and is a director of sixteen subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE
graduated from University of Toronto with a Bachelor's Degree of
Commerce. He is responsible for internal information technology
development, the launching of the furniture business and the
marketing of products distributed by the Group. Mr. TSE is a
nephew of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the
Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTD)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.p., aged 72, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 28 January 2000. Mr.
LEUNG holds a Master’'s Degree of Business Administration of the
University of East Asia, Macau (now known as “the University of
Macau”). Mr. LEUNG is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in-England & Wales, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors;
also an associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr.
LEUNG is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Victory
Securities (Holdings) Company Limited, a company listed on the
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, aged 70, was appointed as an
Independent.’/Non-executive Director on 19 June 2001. He
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1972 with
Honours Bachelor's Degree of Social Science in Economics. He
was appointed as a Director and general manager of Hongkong
Ferry (Holdings) Ltd., formerly The Hongkong & Yaumatei Ferry
Co., Ltd. until late 1989. He has been actively involved in garment
industry and IT business for the last few years.

Mr. WAN Sze Chung, aged 44, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director on 27 September 2004. Mr. Wan obtained
a Master Degree in Business Administration with the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a Master of Education (Counselling &
Guidance) with University of Newcastle upon Tyne, a Second
Bachelor’s Degree of Law with Tsinghua University and a Bachelor
Degree in Accountancy with the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Mr. WAN is an independent non-executive
director of Plover Bay Technologies Limited, a company listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a director of
Jacob Walery Limited specialising in corporate consultancy and
training since 1 March 2007 while he is also teaching with various
universities and professional institutes.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTD)

Senior management

Mr. AU Lai Chuen, Hercules, aged 62, joined the Group in 1982.
Mr. AU possesses over 30 years of experience in the building
materials industry and is responsible for project related sales and
marketing activities.

Mr. CHANG Kai Chuen, Roy, aged 45, joined the Group in 1991.
Mr. CHANG is a general manager of project sales division. He
possesses over 20 years of experience in building materials
industry and is responsible for project sales.

Mr. LO Cheuk Hang, Teddy, aged 42, joined the Group in 2004.
Mr. LO is the chief operating officer of the kitchen project division of
the Group. He possesses over 15 years of experience in kitchen
collection business. He graduated from The Open University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree of Arts in Chinese
Humanities.

Mr. LO Wai Man, aged 65, joined the Group in 1979 and is a
director of seven subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. LO is a technical
director and is responsible for overseeing the provision of technical
support for bathroom collections. He possesses over 30 years of
experience in selling building materials.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the service contracts with Directors as disclosed herein,
no contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors, including Independent Non-executive
Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment, which
constitutes a service contract, with the Company for a term of 12
months. They are subject to re-election by shareholders at annual
general meetings and at least once every three years on a rotation
basis in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. No Director has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic will retire at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. LEUNG Kwong
Kin, J.p., Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic and Mr. WAN Sze Chung are
Independent Non-executive Directors and were appointed for a
fixed term of one year.

DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of their independence pursuant
to the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board considers that all of its Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, no Director was interested in any business apart
from the Company’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any
of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators,
shall or may incur or sustain by for by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts. An insurance
cover is in place to protect Directors against potential costs and
liabilities arising from claims brought against the Group.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed in an
extraordinary general meeting held on 9 September 2010. The
Share Option Scheme expired on 8 September 2015. The
Company has not operated any share option schemes during the
year ended 31 March 2019. As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2019, there was no outstanding share option of the Company.

Apart from the above, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during or
subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION
TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts
that is significant in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company’s subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in
which a Director of the Company and the Director’s connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year and at the end of the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its other associated corporations a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors and chief
executives of the company (including their spouses and children
under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisitions in, or debentures of, the company or its specified
undertakings or other associated corporations.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their associates
in the shares, short positions, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of'the SFO which have been notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix,10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Directors’ interests EEER
Equity Percentage
Personal Corporate derivatives of share
Director 2 interest interest (share options) Total capital issued
ERFTEIR EERTRA
BAER DR (B a@st ZEAL
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 1) WIELE (B 1) - 37,197,294 - 37,197,294 6.19%
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Note 2) HEELE (HiF2) - 108,302,488 - 108,302,488 18.03%
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 3) B RE (HF3) - 43,659,542 - 43,659,542 7.27%
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 2) BEBE R (M7 2) - 108,302,488 - 108,302,488 18.03%
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun BT ELE - - _ _ _
Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. RABAFH+ - - - - -
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic BELL - - - - -
Mr. WAN Sze Chung RBEELE - - - - -

Note 1: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Fast Way
Management Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse are the
beneficiaries.

Note 2: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Universal Star
Group Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and their
family are the beneficiaries.

Note 3: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by New Happy Times
Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and his family are the beneficiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (conTD)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief
executives or their associates had, as at 31 March 2019, any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO)), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

At no time during the year, the Directors and chief executives
(including their spouses and children under 18 years of age) had
any interests in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, its specified undertakings or its other associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2019, the following persons (not being Directors or
chief executives of the Company) had the following interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Name of shareholder RER A

Happy Voice Limited Happy Voice Limited

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of
any substantial shareholder (other than Directors of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that were recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2019.

mﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ?hiii&
7.

EZERBESTHAERAQATREME
B LB 2R REERDRESHZ
R HAE @)

BREXFIRESN R-ZF-NFE=A=+—0 &
ESREETHAEHIBREZHEALIRAQAAR
HEMEBRZER (ERRESRAEMRHEXVE) 2
ARG - HEROGREST  BEREBZRPE
ROIEXVERE 7R 8D MAME AR A RERFTZ
BEIAR (BERERBEESRPERIBREIRX
WEFARRAER 2REILR)  IRBEEFSFR
HIEIRDISE 352 IR R AR R EFEE M2 #
BRAE IRBLTRYBNE RN B RBRAT
ZREEIKRE o

EERFETRAR (BRESZEBRAR T\
¥ ) MERFAEAREBEKEFETARLQE
HisEEBREMABEZERG - HEROKES
2D REERTHITEEMAEFARE LAQ
AlzRHMEBERER SR BERG K E B QTR
(6622F) 1K= -

FERR

REB-AFZA=+—-8 UTAT(AFEER
ARARBBITBRAR) RAR TR RABBERD 5
BERBESRAEMRGIE IB6HFAFE 2B TMATT
BREERARE

RAARRBREBERGD 2T
Number of Percentage
ordinary of share
shares held capital issued
HEBRTRE
REEERHE ZEDL
73,581,206 12.25%

BREXFBREN  REFB-NFE=ZA=1+—-0 &2
AW AABEEAETERR (RRAESBRIN RE
RARDIEEROFHEERBEESRPERGE
3B IRAFE 2B LMATCHEEILR

23



Directors’ Report, EEg#H%

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Negotiator Consultants Limited

The related party transaction as disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019 in respect of rental expenses of approximately HK$4,032,000
paid to Negotiator Consultants Limited (“NCL”) constitutes a
continuing connected party transaction. NCL is a subsidiary of a
company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Wai,
Albert, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin have
beneficial interests. The determination of the rental expenses
followed the pricing policies and guidelines set out in the continuing
connected transaction announcement dated 22 March 2018.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and have confirmed that
these continuing connected transactions were entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) either on
normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter
containing findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group as above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Negotiator Consultants Limited
REMBERRMARFEEBEE-_ZE-NLF=A
=+ — H 1t & E @ Negotiator Consultants Limited
(TNCL]) 2+ &% #4,032,000/8 T ZBIEA =
REBR—EFEBEELTRS - NCLARABHEE
4 BIELRE  WHELERMERCEBEER
BECARBETHBLR HEMXERABA=
E-NFZAZT-HHEREXZ AMAHE
EEWEKRISSIERE -

BYFNTESKEN LABEREXZRER
ZEFBEBREXZ D () WAEBBEER —REKB
AT ; (i) B — MR RBER REIRFAFT L 5 K (iii) &
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group recognises that external events may affect the
environment in which the Group operates. The Group’s business is
managed by an experienced management team who have a close
involvement in the day-to-day running of the business, which
ensures that the Group is prepared for, and can react quickly by
adapting its business to, changes in the operating environment.
Further discussions on the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties
are provided throughout this annual report, particularly in
“Chairman’s Statement” (page 4), “Management Discussion and
Analysis” (pages 6 to 10), “Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems” (pages 43 to 48), “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” (pages 55 to 77) and “Financial Risk
Management” (pages 127 to 134). The above discussions form part
of this Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, save as disclosed on pages 28 to 29 in Corporate
Governance Report, as far as the Board and management are
aware, the Group has complied with the requirements under the
Listing Rules, the SFO and the Cayman Islands Companies Law.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to maintaining a collaborative relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers. Details of which are
set out on pages 69 to 71.

REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2019, our workforce was recorded at 161
employees (2018: 173). Total staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$77,589,000 (2018: HK$79,203,000).

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to legal framework, market conditions and performance
of the Group and individual staff members (including the Directors).
The remuneration policy and remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and members of the senior management of the
Group are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee in accordance
with its Terms of Reference. Details of Directors’ emoluments
during the year are set out on page 146.
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REMUNERATION POLICY (conTD)

Senior management emoluments
For the year ended 31 March 2019, emoluments paid to members
of the senior management are as follows:

A 3’(9@2@-”\(\
TN R ()
BREEASHH

BEZZ-NAFZAZ+-HLEFE IFFaR
EEAEZEHMUT ¢

Number of

Emolument bands FrEM 48 B individuals
A

HK$0-HK$1,000,000 078 7t Z 1,000,000 7T 2
HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 3 7T & 2,000,000 & 7T 2
Total mst 4

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases REBRE

The largest supplier BARMES
Five largest suppliers in aggregate B RBEEAS
Sales HER

The largest customer BREF

Five largest customers in aggregate BEREFHEE

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group endeavours to minimising pollution and protecting the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of
energy and waste. Details of which are set out on pages 62 to 65.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 178.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at
the date of this report, it is confirmed that the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review disclosure of the Group for the year as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) are set out in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 6 to 10 and pages 55 to 77 respectively of the Annual
Report. The business review forms part of this Directors’ Report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Board.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2019
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E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) endeavours to
maintaining-its. high 'standard of corporate governance, and
continues to review and reinforce its corporate governance
measures. The Company believes that accountability and reporting
system with high transparency for the Company’s operation has
been in place. Disclosures could also be made timely and
accurately. At the same time, the rights of shareholders can be
treated and protected equitably.

The Company is led by an efficient and responsible board of
directors (the “Board”), which is comprised of individuals with high
qualifications and relevant experience. This can ensure that the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) maintain good
corporate governance practices and have comprehensive internal
control and risk management systems, so as to cope with the
Group’s development strategies and increase the shareholders’
value.

The Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) published by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited sets out the principles of
good corporate governance and provides two levels of
recommendations:

(a) code provisions, with which issuers are expected to comply,
but from which they may choose to deviate, provided that they
give considered reasons for non-compliance; and

(b) recommended best practices, with which issuers are
encouraged to comply, but which are provided for guidance
only.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), the
Board has complied with all the code provisions in the Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, with the exception of
the following deviation:

Under the code provision C.2.5, the Company should have an
internal audit function. Given the current scale of operations, the
Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board is
directly responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and for the review of its effectiveness. The
Board will continue review, at least annually, this arrangement
going forward in light of the evolving needs of the Group.
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Under the code provision E.1.5 (with effect from January 2019), the
Company should have a policy on payment of dividends. The
Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy on 14 March
2019 with immediate effect; and that prior to the said date the
Company had not adopted any formal dividend policy.

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules sets
out a required standard against which Directors must measure their
conduct regarding transactions in securities of their listed
companies. The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

THE BOARD

The Board comprises five Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The names of the Directors
are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.,.

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

For the terms of appointment of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, please refer to page 20 in Directors’ Report. In
accordance to the Articles of Association of the Company, at each
general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least
once every three years. Formal letters of appointment have been
issued to all Directors setting out all key terms and conditions of
their respective appointment. Each newly appointed Director will
also be issued with a letter of appointment.

Biographies of all Directors are listed in Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management set out on pages 17 to 19.
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THE BOARD (CONT’D)

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board
takes decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic direction of
the Company, setting the objectives of management, monitoring
the performance of management, overseeing the management of
the Company’s relationship with shareholders, ensuring that a
framework of. prudent and effective controls is in place to enable
risks to be assessed and managed, setting the Company’s values
and standards, reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous ‘professional development of directors and senior
management.

When the Board delegates management and administration
functions.to management, it has given clear directions on the
powers ‘of mahagement with respect to the circumstances where
management is to report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Company. The Company has formalised functions
reserved to the Board and the management respectively; and the
Board reviews those arrangements periodically to ensure that they
remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.

The management and staff of the Company ensure the successful
implementation of the strategies, business directions and policies
as determined by the Board. In doing so, they must apply business
principles and ethics, which are consistent with those expected by
the Board and Shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Independent Non-executive Directors help to ensure that the
Board can make independent judgement efficiently. They also take
the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise. They scrutinise
the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals
and objectives, and monitor performance reporting. They make a
positive contribution to and independent judgement on the
development of the Company’s strategy, policies, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards or
conduct through independent, constructive and informed
comments. The Independent Non-executive Directors possess
appropriate professional qualification. Among them, some possess
expertise in accounting or financial management. Each
Independent Non-executive Director has also submitted an annual
written confirmation to the Company confirming his independence.
Three Independent Non-executive Directors are engaged by
contract every year and are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and the
Listing Rules. The Company considered that all Independent Non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD (CONT’D) BEEgW@

Except as disclosed in the Annual Report, there is no special
relationship, including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among the members of the Board.

All Directors give sufficient time and attention to the Group’s affairs
and have actively participated in the Board meetings to discuss the
overall strategies, business directions and policies of the Group.
Throughout the year, the Company held 4 regular and 2 non-
regular Board meetings, and 1 general meeting. To ensure that
Directors could obtain all related information to make an informed
decision and to perform their duties and responsibilities, documents
for the Board meeting were supplied to Directors for their
consideration before the meeting according to the regulations set
out in the Listing Rules and code provisions of the Code.

The attendance of board meetings and the general meeting during
the year is set out on page 48.

The Board makes arrangement to provide opportunities for all
Directors to include matters in the agenda of regular Board
meetings. At least 14 days’ notices are given in respect of regular
Board meetings. For regular Board meetings, an agenda and
relevant materials are sent, in full, to all Directors in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of board
meeting. For all other Board meetings, Directors are given as much
notice as reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.

Management provides the Board and board committees with
adequate and timely information which is accurate, clear, complete
and reliable and enables Directors to make informed decisions on
matters placed before them, and perform their duties and
responsibilities as directors. Management provides adequate
explanations and information to the Board to enable Directors to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before them for approval. In addition, the Board and
each Director have separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management. All Directors have free access to
board papers and related materials. Queries raised by Directors
are provided with a prompt and full response.

Minutes of each Board meeting and board committee meeting are
kept by the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) and are
available for inspection by any Director. Minutes record in sufficient
detail the matters considered by the Board and the decisions
reached. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comment and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the Board meeting is held.
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THE BOARD (CONT’D)

All Directors have free access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that good information
flow within the Board, Board policies, Board procedures, applicable
laws, rules and regulations are followed. Moreover, all Directors
may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances in the furtherance of their duties at the Company’s
expenses. The Company provides separate independent
professional advice to Directors to assist them perform their duties.

If a substantial shareholder or Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a
physical board meeting set up for that purpose and voted on by
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the transaction. Directors’ concerned must abstain from
voting on .any Board resolution and will not be counted in the
quorum.

The Company has arranged an insurance cover for directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal action against them arising
from corporate activities.

A formal, considered and transparent procedure is in place for the
appointment of new directors. Newly appointed directors are
provided with briefing materials to ensure that they are familiar with
the Company’s operations and business, his responsibilities under
statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other
regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies. In addition, an orderly succession for
appointments is maintained to ensure high standard of corporate
governance of the Company.

The Company encourages Directors and the Senior Management
to participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge, skills and understanding of the
business and markets in which the Group operates. The Company
continuously updates Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, as well as information related to the Group’s
business and operations, to ensure compliance, enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices and enable
them to discharge duties properly. This has involved various forms
of activities including attending seminars, reading materials
relevant to the Company’s business, director’s duties and
responsibilities.

The records of training of Directors received during the year is set
out on page 48.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Chairman of the Board and Managing Director (in this report,
“Managing Director” is equivalent to “Chief Executive” set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules) are two clearly separated roles
and are performed by different individuals. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry,
Chairman of the Board, is responsible for managing the Board. Mr.
TSE Sun Po, Tony, Managing Director, is responsible for the
Company’s operations. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director has been clearly
defined and the written terms of reference have been set.

Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board are as follows:
(a) Providing leadership for the Board;

(b) Ensuring all Directors are properly briefed on matters to be
discussed at Board meetings;

(c) Ensuring all Directors receive adequate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner;

(d) Ensuring that the Board works effectively, performs its
responsibilities and discusses all key and appropriate issues
in a timely manner;

(e) Ensuring that, the Company Secretary draws up and approves
the agenda for Board meetings on the Chairman’s behalf,
taking into account any matters proposed by other Directors
for inclusion in the agenda;

()  Ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with Shareholders and that views of
Shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole;

(g) Ensuring good corporate governance practices are in place
and procedures are established;

(h) Encouraging all Directors to make a full and active contribution
to the Board’s affairs, giving each Director an opportunity to
express his views at Board meetings, ensuring that the Board
acts in the best interests of the Company, encouraging
Directors with different views to voice their concerns, allowing
sufficient time for discussion of issues and ensuring that
Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus;
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR (CONT’D)

(i) Holding meetings with Independent Non-executive Directors
annually without the presence of other Directors; and

() Promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contribution of all Directors, in particular Non-
executive Directors, and building constructive relations
between Executive and Non-executive Directors.

The Managing Director is appointed by the Board. His
responsibilities are as follows:

(a) Providing leadership for the management;

(b) Implementing and reporting to the Board on the Company’s
strategies;

() Overseeing the implementation by the Company of the
objectives set by the Board;

(d) Providing all such information to the Board as is necessary to
enable the Board to monitor the performance of management;

(e) Leading the management of the Company’s relationships with
its stakeholders;

() Putting in place programmes for management development
and succession;

() Working with the Head of Finance, establishing and
maintaining proper internal controls and systems as well as
disclosure controls and procedures; and

(h) Discharging such duties and authorities as may be delegated
in writing to him by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 September
2005. It is comprised of two Independent Non-executive Directors
and one Executive Director. The Remuneration Committee is
chaired by Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic.

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website.

The roles and function of the Remuneration Committee are as
follows:

(a) To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

(d) To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
for Non-executive Directors;

(e) To consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

() To review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

(g) To review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

(h) To ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration;

(i) To-consult the Chairman and/or the chief executive about their
remuneration proposals for Executive Directors. The
committee should have access to professional advice if
necessary; and

()). To consider other topics as defined by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee reports to the Board on its
discussion results and recommendations after each meeting and is
provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is
authorised by the Board to obtain independent legal or other
professional advice.

The remuneration of members of the senior management is set out
on page 26.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to review
the remuneration of the Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Committee also reviewed and
determined the policy for the remuneration of Executive Directors;
assessed their performance and approved the terms of service
contracts of Directors. No Director had participated in the
determination of his or her own remuneration. Discussion results
and recommendations of the meetings have been proposed to the
Board for its review.

The attendance of committee members at committee meetings
during the year is set out on page 48. The remuneration policy of
the Group is set out on pages 25 to 26.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established on 22 March 2000, is currently
comprised of three Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.p..

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee is clearly defined
and posted on the Company’s website.

The roles and function of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(a) To be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(b) To review and monitor the external auditor's independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The audit committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(¢) To develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. The audit committee
should report to the Board, identifying and making
recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed,;

(d) To act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

(e) To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them;

() To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim

and final audits, and any matters the auditor may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary);
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

(9)

(m)

To review the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems covering all controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls;

To discuss the risk management and internal control system
with management to ensure that management has performed
its. duty to have an effective internal control system. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting function;

To consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings, and review the statements concerning risk
management and internal control to be included in the annual
report;

Where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, to
review and approve the annual internal audit plan, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

To review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

To review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;

To review the Company’s statement on internal control
systems (where one is included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the Board;

To ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

To report to the Board on the matters in the code provision of
Appendix 14 C.3 of the Listing Rules; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

(p) To review arrangements that employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action.

In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for corporate
governance functions as below:

(a) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(c) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(d) To review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim results
for the six months ended 30 September 2018, discussed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
with management, and reviewed the annual budget for audit fees.
In addition, the Audit Committee considered and reviewed the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2019 on 26 June 2019,
and proposed to the Board for their approval.

In addition, during the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies (including the Inside
Information Policy (“the Inside Information Policy”)) and practices,
reviewed and monitored the Company’s code of conduct manual,
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

All members of the Audit Committee actively participated in the
committee’s meetings. During the year, the Audit Committee met
twice, full minutes of which are kept by the Company Secretary.
Draft and final versions of minutes of meetings are sent to all
committee members for their comment and records within a
reasonable time after the meeting. Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review,
and related recommendations were adopted by the Board. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties and.is authorised by the Board to obtain independent legal
or other professional advice.

The attendance of committee members at committee meetings
during the year is set out on page 48.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing the
financial statements. As at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors
were aware of any uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. As such, the Directors have prepared
the Company’s financial statements on a going concern basis.

Reporting responsibilities of external auditors on the financial
statements are set out in “Independent Auditor's Report” (pages 78
to 85).

Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the following auditor’s
remuneration has been incurred by the Company:

PricewaterhouseCoopers

— Audit services — BRRE
— Non-audit services — FEXARTE
Total Fa

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the fees to
PricewaterhouseCoopers, amounting to HK$2,516,000 were
primarily for audit services and those for non-audit services
amounted to HK$148,000, 5.9% of the total fees. The non-audit
services provided by the auditor was tax compliance services.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 March 2012. It
is comprised of two Independent Non-executive Directors and one
Executive Director. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr.
WONG Wah, Dominic.

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(a) Review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b) Identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) Assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

(d) Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by
the Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to review the
Board and Senior Management of the Company. The Committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
reviewed the board diversity policy, reviewed the time and
contribution from Directors, assessed the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors, made recommendation on
the appointment and reappointment of Directors at the 2019 AGM
and discussed the succession planning for the Company’s Board
and Senior Management. In addition, the Committee reviewed the
nomination policy (including procedures, process and criteria to
select and recommend candidates for directorship). Discussion
results and recommendations have been proposed to the Board for
its review.

The attendance of committee members at committee meetings
during the year is set out on page 48.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

EEZEE W)

REZEE

REZEER -2 -H=A-+tAMY HW
BBEUFANTESR —BITESEAN - BEERE
RREEZEEXFE -

REZSSCTHREEE  YRAQ TR -

REZESZAGRBENT :

(a) BOSFRTESSZRE - ABRAR(E
B ABRERAHE) U EARYEE
E2FHCEBHREESR  UBEEEAATFZE
E i

(b) MEABAEERTREESENEZALTIE
REATHEESIRUOESSREES

(c) FRIEBMEMTESZHEIM S R

(d HESZEAERZEURES(LERIRE
RITBAR) cEEIHSNESSREESR -

REZEENEREREONESTERIMERR
BE WERUARERUBTREREESSR
ERBABLEREREMEXRR -

RAFER  REZEERRIT-REE  LEAE
NAEZERSREEAE - ZESERTESS
ZHRE - ABRAK  REESEZTEE  BF
ESHNHBEARERM FRBYFHTESZH
U RESR-Z2-NFRREFASENEER
ENZEARLER  UNRAQAESERSRE
BABZHEMETE - I ZESERTREEE
(BEREREBRESREAZSIR BEFREE) -
ARERRERCERESTEES

ZEERENRTFERNERTHZEESRLERR
HIINE48H

41



42

act to precaution * oy

T A 4o 8w

Corporate Governance Report ®%E&R&EE

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Nomination Committee (cont’d)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has an appropriate mix of skills, experience and
diversity. The members of Board possess diverse competences,
spanning business management, advisory and monitoring,
accounting and financial management, brand building, sales and
marketing and |.T. development. The profile of Directors is set out
in Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management on
pages 17 to 19.

The Board has adopted its own board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy aims to achieve
diversity of the Board through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience. The Nomination
Committee of the Company shall review the Board Diversity Policy
as appropriate and make recommendations on any proposed
revisions to the Board.

Board appointments will be based on objective criteria having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

At present, there are 3 Independent Non-executive Directors in the
Board, accounting for over 1/3 of the total numbers of the Board.
They bring them with diverse academic and professional
qualifications and experience to the Board.

BUSINESS MODEL

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding.

The Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
importing, wholesale, retail and installation of architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The objective of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) is to become one of the leading quality suppliers of
architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and
furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value of the Group by
managing customers’ expectation of getting products that
commensurate with their lifestyles and quality services. Founded
four decades ago, the Group has established reputation and gained
trust from major contractors, property developers and dealers. The
Group also runs retail outlets and showrooms to display products.
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BUSINESS STRATEGY

The Group endeavours to generate return to shareholders through:

(a) Leveraging our core competencies in products and services to
generate profits;

(b) Maintaining collaborative relationships with staff members,
customers and suppliers; and

(c) Adopting a prudent financial management policy at all times.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The Board is
also responsible for the risk management and internal control
system and reviewing their effectiveness.

The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Process of risk management and internal control systems

Risk
Assessment
R B
The Process of
Internal
Control
Monitoring 2B
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Control
Environment
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Control
Activities
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43



44

Corporate Governance Report ®%E&R&EE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (CONT'D)

Internal controls encompass a set of rules, policies, and procedures
that the Group implements to provide reasonable assurance that:

(a) The Group financial reports are reliable;

(b) The Group operations are effective and efficient; and

(c).. The Group activities comply with applicable laws and
regulations. The Board, management, and other personnel

are responsible for the internal control system.

The key components of the Group’s internal control structure are
as follows:

B EERANIBEIZRE @)

AMEZRE-EXKEERNRA - BRRERF
LS TRREE

(a) AKENHMBHRERZASE

53

(b) AKEHNEERMMAMGS

(c) FEENEBETBEREMREERER -F&
BEST EEERAMASEEANEZR
BREVEE o

REBMANEZRABNETEZEARBOWT ¢

Control Environment

Establishing a foundation for monitoring internal control begins
with an effective tone at the top of the organisation. The reason
of this is so important that management’s attitude regarding
monitoring will determine the selection of evaluators and the
approach to monitoring. The tone set by the management will
influence the way staff members conduct monitoring activities.
In turn, the Board will influence and guide how management
applies and conducts monitoring.
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Control Activities
The internal control of the Group includes the following areas:

o Integrity and ethics

. Commitment to competence

U Board of Directors and audit committee participation
o Management philosophy and operating style

U Organisational structure

. Assignment of authority and responsibility

o Human resource policies and practices
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (CONT'D)

B EE N AN EBELIE RS (&

Information and Communication
The Group’s risk management structure is shown as below:

MERXR
ANEENRBRSERBU TR :

Governance
=

Ultimate responsible body
RREBERE

1 1

Management
EEE

Decision- maklng body
RE

Audit Committee
EREEE

Governance body

E/n%%

1

Department /
Functional Heads
HEA/BEEE

Risk owners

mEEEA I

The Board has the overall responsibility in ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains robust and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group.

The Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, oversees the
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, including financial controls, operational controls and
compliance controls.

The management is the decision-making body of the risk
management control system. It comprises members from
various functions of the Group so as to provide holistic
coverage of the Group as a whole.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
risk during their day-to-day operations. They operate in
accordance with the clearly defined procedures, responsibilities
and limits of authority. They identify and assess risk associated
with their operations and report to the management for review.

EXE2REERRALLAATEERYIRER
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BELFGHR  ERRELEE  QEHBE
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (CONT'D)

B EERANIBEIZRE @)

46

Monitoring

Monitoring of internal control is performed through application
of both on-going evaluations and separate evaluations. These
evaluations ascertain whether other components of internal
control continue to function as designed and intended. In
addition, these evaluations facilitate identification of internal
control deficiencies and communicate them to appropriate
officials responsible for taking corrective actions. More serious
deficiencies are communicated to higher levels of management
and to the Board of Directors when appropriate.
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BB EE R - BERAERERE - RS
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Risk Assessment

Business risks change over time. The internal control system
needs to be capable of determining that the controls in place
are relevant and effective in addressing new risks. A monitoring
process must be capable of addressing the need for revisions
in the design of controls based on changing risk. Effective
internal control systems must be capable of containing risks at
an acceptable level to ensure effective and efficient operations
on an on-going basis. Thus, continuous feeding of information
and communication help monitoring the changes and reaction.

By the use of the modern I.T. system to record, maintain and
produce outputs of accurate, complete, and timely information,
the Board and management team can:

(a) Evaluate the risks associated with the updated mode of
collecting, storing, and reporting data (e.g. recording the
sale of merchandise, updating a customer’s address,
preparing a report on sales by product);

(b) Design specific control procedures that help control the
risks applicable to the new design; and

(c) Ensure accountants are familiar with I.T. capabilities and
risks, and recognise the opportunities that the I.T. system
provides to prevent, detect, and correct errors and
irregularities as the business events are executed.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (CONT'D)

Risk assessment identifies and analyses the relevant risks
associated with the Group’s objectives. It forms the basis for
determining what risks need to be controlled and the controls
required to manage them. Our head of risk management has
periodic meetings with directors and the management team to
oversee and discuss the proper operating style with each other.
Directors and the management team will then make decision and
delegate to each department for execution. Through daily
communication and information gathered, directors and
management team will be able to monitor the daily operation and
risks that might occur, thus be able to prevent or minimise them. It
also makes sure operations are in compliance with laws, rules, and
regulations. At the same time, each department’s missions and
goals are achieved. The management confirmed that the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company were effective.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company recognises its disclosure obligation under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The
Company conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission. The Company has included in its staff
handbook a strict prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential
including inside information in order to make sure appropriate
handling and dissemination of Inside Information is in place.

Review of risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 March 2019

The Board, through the Audit Committee, oversees the
management on the design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Company,
including financial controls, operational controls and compliance
controls.

The Group carried out control activities comprising a diverse range
of policies and procedures, including: conducting reviews of actual
performance, reviewing of performance reports, checking
information processing in transactions, performing physical
controls, analysing performance indicators and dividing and
segregating duties amongst different people. These can help the
Group ensure proper internal control is in place across
departments/divisions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (CONT'D)

Review of risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 March 2019 (cont’d)

During the year, the Board through the Audit Committee, holds an
annual review to consider and discuss the risk management and
internal control systems (including but not limited to, the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function). The Board received a confirmation from the
ESG Workgroup that the resources relating to ESG performance
and reporting-were considered adequate. During the year, the
Company did not have an internal audit department; details of
which are set out on page 28. Based on the review, the Board
considers that there is no significant change in the nature and
extent of risks and the Company’s ability to respond to changes in
its business and' the external environment since the last annual
review. The Board was not aware of any significant issues that
would have anadverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Based on the internal financial controls, half-yearly financial
reporting and timely updates on Listing Rules requirements, the
Group’s processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance are considered by the Board as effective.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE AND
TRAINING RECORDS

The attendance of Directors at Board and Board committee
meetings, the Annual General Meeting and training records for the
year ended 31 March 2019 is as follows:

Remuneration

Director = Board Committee
Exg FMzEs

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry MEELE 6/6

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert EEREY 6/6

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony WIELE 6/6

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin AR LE 6/6

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun 2BEmrE 5/6 1

Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BIYFHTES

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. RHREAFHL 4/4 11

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic FEEE 4/4 11

Mr. WAN Sze Chung R EE 4/4

Notes:

A: Attending seminars, conference and/or forums
B: Reading newspapers, journals and/or updates
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Annual
Audit Nomination General Types of
Committee =~ Committee Meeting Training
EREEE REEE® RREFAE IR
1 11 AB
11 AB
11 AB
11 AB
11 AB
2/2 11 AB
2/2 11 11 AB
2/2 11 11 AB
BaE
A: ZMAFE - EER/ RTHE

B: RIERE - AR REHER
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COMPANY SECRETARY NEIME

The selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company
Secretary of the Company is approved by the Board.

Our Company Secretary is Mr. YU Chi Wah. He is also the Chief
Financial Officer and is employed on a full-time basis. During the
year, he had taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Our
Company Secretary reports to the Board Chairman, co-ordinates
the supply of information to the Directors and facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors. During the year,
meeting agenda and accompanying board papers were provided at
least 3 days before the date of the Board or committee meetings.
Furthermore, all Directors have access to the Company Secretary
to ensure that good information flow within the Board, Board
policies, Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

It is the Company’s policies to have open communication and
disclose information in a fair manner. Information disclosure is a
key means to enhance corporate governance standard.
Shareholders can assess the Company’s performance based on
the information disclosed and provide feedback to the Company.
Information relating to the Group and its business, together with its
financial conditions, are disclosed in this report and the Company’s
website at www.ebon.com.hk.

All registered shareholders shall receive either notice of the annual
general meeting and extraordinary general meeting (together the
“Meeting”) or equivalent notification letter by post. The notice of the
Meeting contains an agenda, resolutions proposed and a proxy
form. All shareholders, whose shares are registered in the register
of members, are entitled to attend the Meeting. Shareholders who
cannot attend the Meeting can appoint their proxies or the chairman
of the meeting as their proxies by completing the proxy form
enclosed with the notice of the meeting and returning it to the
Company’s share registrar. Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing
Rules, all votes of shareholders at the Meeting will be taken by poll.
Procedures for demanding a vote by poll, together with the notice
of the meeting, have been enclosed with a circular despatched to
the shareholders. The procedures shall be read out at the Meeting
by the chairman of the meeting so as to make sure shareholders
are familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll. In
addition, separate resolutions for substantially separated issues
shall be proposed to the Meeting for the approval of shareholders.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (CONT’D)

The annual general meeting is considered as an annual significant
event of the Company. The AGM provides a precious opportunity
for shareholders and the Board to exchange constructive opinions.
All Directors shall attend the annual general meeting. Apart from
attending the AGM, the Chairman of the Board shall arrange the
chairmen of each Board Committee to attend and answer questions
at the annual general meeting. The Company’s auditor shall also
attend the annual general meeting to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Board adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy
reflecting mostly the current practices of the Company for
communication with its Shareholders. Such Policy aims to set out
the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the Company’s
shareholders, in appropriate circumstances, the investment
community at large, are provided with ready, equal and timely
access-to balanced and understandable information about the
Company, so that Shareholders are able to exercise their rights in
an informed manner, and to allow them and the investment
community to engage actively with the Company. For the purpose
of this Policy, reference to the investment community is intended to
include the Company’s potential investors as well as analysis
reporting and analysis the Company’s performance.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
written enquiries and concerns by post to the Board by addressing
them to the Company Secretary of the Company at its Head Office
as follows:

The Company Secretary
16th—18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (CONT’D)

Shareholders’ Communication Policy (cont’d)

The Company has established a number of channels for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders and the
investment community, and will regularly review this Policy to
ensure its effectiveness as follows:

(a) Information shall be communicated to Shareholders and the
investment community mainly through the Company’s financial
reports (interim and annual reports), annual general meetings
and other general meetings that may be convened, as well as
by making available all the disclosures submitted to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”) and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
Company’s website.

(b) Effective and timely dissemination of information to
Shareholders and the investment community shall be ensured
at all times. Any question regarding this Policy shall be
directed to the Company Secretary.

Shareholders’ Enquiries
(a) Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s registrar.

(b) Shareholders and the investment community may at any
reasonable time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.

(c) Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided
with designated contacts, e-mail addresses and enquiry lines
of the Company in order to enable them to make any query in
respect of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (CONT’D)

Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on 14
March 2019 that, when considering any payment of a dividend, the
Board shall take into account of (i) the profitability of the Group for
the financial year; (ii) the Group’s general financial condition
supporting its normal operations; (iii) the Group’s actual and
expected business performance; (iv) the Group’s overall results of
operation, financial performance and liquidity position; (v) the
Group’s expected capital commitments, future cash requirements
and future business development plans and prospects such as
market conditions; (vi) retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members of the Group; (vii) the
general economic conditions, business cycles of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of the
Group; and (viii) any other factors that the Board considers relevant
and appropriate. The Board will continually review the Dividend
Policy from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1. The Company has only one class of shares and the Articles of
Association of the Company set out the rights of our
shareholders.

2. Shareholders have right to receive corporate communications
issued by the Company.

3. Shareholders whose shares held in Tricor Abacus Limited
(“Tricor”) may notify us from time to time through Tricor if they
wish to receive our corporate communications.

4. Shareholders are furnished with comprehensive background
information in a timely manner concerning the matters to be
decided at general meetings and they are well informed of the
rules including the voting procedures that govern general
meetings.

5. Subject to the Articles of Association and the rules prescribed
by the Stock Exchange from time to time, shareholders have
right to participate and vote in general meetings. Any
shareholder not attending a general meeting can give proxy to
vote on his/her behalf. Forms of Proxy are sent to
shareholders of the Company together with the notice of
meeting.

6. Shareholders have right to raise questions at general
meetings.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONT’D)

7.

10.

11.

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may request the Board, through the Company
Secretary, to convene an extraordinary general meeting.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of
shareholders at the annual general meeting will be taken by
poll. The chairman of the meeting will explain at the
commencement of the meeting the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll. On a poll, every shareholder present in
person or by proxy will have one vote for every share held. A
shareholder which is a corporation will be present in person if
a duly authorised representative of such shareholder is
present at the meeting. A shareholder present in person or by
proxy who is entitled to more than one vote does not have to
use all his or her votes or to cast all his or her votes the same
way. The result of the poll shall be deemed to be a resolution
of the meeting. After the closure of a general meeting, the poll
results will be published on the Company’s website at
www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews website at
www.hkexnews.hk.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in key corporate
governance decisions. Sufficient time is allowed for
shareholders to consider the candidates being nominated
before the general meetings.

The Company ensures that votes cast are properly counted
and recorded. Voting results are verified by independent
scrutineers and announced in a timely manner after the
closure of general meeting and posted on the Company’s and
HKEXnews websites.

Shareholder who has a material interest in the subject
transaction may be required to abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution at the relevant general meeting as required
by the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONT’D)

Procedures for a shareholder to propose a person for election
as a Director

The general meeting is the principal opportunity and ideal venue
for shareholders to meet and exchange views on the Company’s
business with the Directors and the management.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at an AGM, the shareholder
should deposit a written notice of nomination which shall be given
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office within the
7-day period commencing the day after the despatch of the AGM
notice (or such other period as may be determined and announced
by the Directors from time to time).

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles of Association or
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to put
forward new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who
wish to put forward a new resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, in both
English and Chinese, are available on the Company’s website at
www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews website at
www.hkexnews.hk. There was no significant change to the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2019. The Company proposes to amend
certain provisions of the existing Articles of Association in order to
bring the Company’s Articles of Association in line with the relevant
requirements of the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the
Listing Rules including, among other things, allowing the form of
electronic transmission or communication to shareholders. In view
of the number of amendments, it is proposed that a resolution will
be proposed at the AGM to adopt a new Articles of Association
incorporating such amendments in substitution for the existing
Articles of Association of the Company. Please refer to the circular
of the Company dated 26 July 2019 for further details of the
changes to the existing Articles of Association to be brought about
by the adoption of the new Articles of Association.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report B - # @R EARRE

OVERVIEW

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. It
provides an annual summary of the Group’s environmental and
social performance for the financial year ended 31 March 2019. For
corporate governance, please refer to pages 28 to 54.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This Report aims to provide a balanced representation of the
Group’s performance in the environmental and social (employment
and labour practices, operating practices and community
involvement) aspects and covers the Group’s operations in Hong
Kong. The Group will expand the scope of disclosures when the
data collection system is better established.

The Group’s operations in Hong Kong:

W

NEW TERRITORIES #75

KOWLOON 7Hu3
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o Office

* Showroom and
retail outlets
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* Warehouse
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CONTENT OF THIS REPORT

The content of this Report is defined through a systematic process
including:

Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests
. Engage — Interact with stakeholders

J Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

o Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder

engagement processes
Vision
=

ASSURANCE

This Report has been independently verified by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency, with the scope and basis of the
verification set out in the Verification Statement of this Report.

REPORTING RESPONSIBILITY

The Board has delegated the environmental and social
performance to an ESG workgroup which comprising of a director
of the Group. The ESG workgroup reports to the Board and the
Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s sustainability
performance and ESG reporting. The Group is committed to
making continuous improvements on environmental and social
aspects and has taken measures to supervise and implement
policies to manage sustainable development of the Group. Key
performance indicators were identified and monitored for reviews
and enhancement plans. This Report was approved by the Board
on 26 June 2019.
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SUSTAINABILITY POLICY AIFEEREBER
At E. Bon, sustainability is embedded in our business operations [FAFEZERE | NBSCRENEBITERLEESD
that creates sustainable value with its stakeholders in economic, HEEZEAHEELE - BERMESEELAEAEE

environmental and social dimensions. The Group has developed a f&f& - AEEEHIE —BEPIH I 54 éé)féiﬁz% #a
dedicated sustainability policy which directs its operations towards ZBEEXKER - RERE EERZEIER -

the best practice in areas such as business growth, environmental ZBEERERHESHEFENEEEZEZEREETE T —i;i"é
protection, employment and labour practices, operating practices BEBRFEREEHS :

and community involvement. The sustainability policy commits the

Group to:

J Meeting all applicable legal and regulatory requirements on EAHERREELBTHMEERELEREE
sustainability issues; RIE S

. Pursuing good practices of sustainability in its operations; . EEETFERRINAISERREER
. Implementing policies relating to business growth, -« Bt ‘ﬁ‘ XBER - RERE TIESME
ER

environmental protection, workplace quality, operating BERRTESHENECE ;
practices and community involvement;

. Encouraging our staff to be proactive in sustainability issues; . SRS THEBEYTHERRSE
. Promoting sustainability awareness along its value chain; . MEEEEREVHERER

. Engaging our stakeholders in the sustainability process; and . BAEEFOHESHEUSERERE R

. Monitoring and improving the sustainability performance. . EERNEUHERRRR -

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER 57
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SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY A AR R

When we execute business strategies, our sustainability vision and E#TEHREE > AEENTESERRESRK
policy enable us to take account of our responsibility to the HKEGEERMEEHRBERLSERBMNET  L5|E
environment and society in general. It steers us towards a balance HMERMNEERETERSNEZBNIEF

of stakeholders’ interests in the environment that we operate. 1o
Our ESG matrix: UTAREENRE tERERERE :
Stakeholders
55 &

Corporate
Governance &
Business

EEEBREH

E. Bon
Sustainability
53R4T
MR A R

Community Environment

investment
HERE

" 5

Economy & Society
BRERLE

Although our vision remains consistent, the dynamic nature of HAXKENESIBAN—  BFGERBEINZE
stakeholders’ preferences requires regular review and refinement BEEHMXE - FRILATHERN - W KGERERKE
of our strategies and risk management procedures to ensure the REBEERRF X UBFRAEEHETHZCNE
fulfilment of stakeholders’ ever-changing needs. B

Note: Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers our operations in Hong Mz @ BREBEHBN  ARE - HEREAREEBEFKE

Kong only. Our Hong Kong operations represent the core of all of our REBNEE - BMNBBHEBRERRL  REBE
operations, contributing over 90% of our Group’s turnover in the financial year CE-NEZAST-HUEMBFESREEERER
ended 31 March 2019. kBB 90% °

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019 n
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT FhE&E2HE

Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests T8 — RBIFHEREENF R

The ESG Workgroup reviewed the appropriateness of the sampling R#& - #ERERITEASE B AT EERRBTE
of stakeholders with reference to the current course of business to & #MENEEME  UBRRAZENFHEERE
make sure the stakeholders being considered were relevant to the B - TFANAEEREERZEEEMHEE
Group. Findings of the Workgroup were submitted to the ZERETHHRRITE -

management for discussions and actions where necessary.

The stakeholder engagement process is spread over 3 key phases: EHESHEREREE=ZBEEME

Phase 1 :

Key Internal stakeholders
engagement

B—REER

EEREE B

* Board of Directors
ERg

* Investors
REE

« Senior management
SREEE

« Staff representatives

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

Phase 2 :

Key Internal stakeholders
engagement

BRR

F BN E T

* Suppliers
e

* Customers
5F

Phase 3 :
Key Internal stakeholders
engagement

E=PEER
HAF D & B

* Other relevant parties
(such as other ESG practitioners)

H{biRB AR
(B3RS - HERELAERE)

* Non-governmental
organisations and
community
FBAHERERAL
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FHESEm)

2R —EENERD

RRERMANTERENHE - RMAFEETEH
ESHEEE - RMNEREZMMG - BBASHER
BESAEERNTRIBEVENSEENSH -
EAZEEREKIBESESIREAL  RER

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (conTD)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders

To identify our reportable material aspects, we carried out an on-
going process of stakeholder engagement. Materiality assessment
was conducted to identify important issues to both internal and
external stakeholders of the Group by questionnaire. Material
topics include issues that have a direct or indirect impact on the EREAS - HENERHSNEE RERTEE
Group’s ability to create, preserve or erode economic, fEEINNER ZARERMETEAHENEGSE
environmental and social value of itself, its stakeholders and REZ—ESHEEMEE: (1)2HE; QX KK (B)H

society at large. This process enables us to categorise various &iFHHE o
groups of stakeholders into an engagement matrix: (1) engage, (2)
communicate and (3) inform stakeholders.

The following matrix outlines the perspectives of key internal and

key external stakeholders of the Group based on the materiality
assessments conducted over the past three years.

High concern

RIBBE=FERNERMETMGE - THEREBELE
TAEBETERNBREZ/IEDFOEMNEE

AhBRY
FERE o Operating Performance @ ﬁiu%%er iEﬁr\:/irr;nmental Assessments
EERR R IR A AT
e e Local Investments @ Iibo;ri\llanagegem Relations
wHERE ST /EEERRF
9 a e Market Presence @ ?eﬂguitgent &ﬁRetention
THERER RRRIEEA
@ o@ e 0 o Compliance @ %mployeje Benefits
AR BREA
Procurement Practices Employment Diversity
4 0 ® © RHER ® VL e
o m e Research & Development @ Occupational Safety and Health
_8 e s BRI RER
O o 0 Customer Satisfaction @ Career Development and Training
8 @ EFREE BERERS
ni= Customer Privacy Labour Practices
o ® (20) o EFLE ® BIHh
c = @ 0 Raw Materials @ Gender Equality
o EME MHITE
I.I>j @ @ @ Social Grievance Mechanisms
@ e HEmERREE
@ Supplier Social Assessments
@ @@ @ @ Energy Consumption and Management HEFL &G
@ @ m ERERRER @ Product and Service Responsibility
Greenhouse Gas Emission EmMRRBEE
@ @ @ BEREER @ Local Community and Charity Involvement
Water Resource Management rpHEREESH
KERER
Low concern — High concern Air Pollution Prevention
RYHEEE FEBE ZRSRH
Internal Stakeholders \gg% Management
PRI E B
" Transportation Safety Managemant
BERZ2ER
@ Green Product
BREER

Green Investments
BERE

Environmental Grievance Mechanisms
R R
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (conTD)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders (cont’d)

The Group identified 31 material issues related to its business
operations. Through the materiality assessment, five issues were
identified to have significant impacts by stakeholders, namely,
customer satisfaction, market presence, operating performance,
procurement practices, product and service responsibility. The
assessment results were discussed and validated by the
management of the Group. The Group has decided to prioritise its
sustainability efforts on people issues where the Group has a
relatively high sustainability impact.

Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

During the year, the Group identified stakeholders’ priorities to work
on over the coming year:

o Continue policy enhancement

> Review our current policies on major ESG subject areas
of customer service and supplier management

> Complete the collection of data in order to make
comparisons feasible

. Increase disclosure coverage

> Increase the disclosure in key performance indicators
(KPI) where material

Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes

The management is responsible to review the stakeholder
engagement process to ensure a sufficient coverage of
stakeholders and issues. Feedback of publication of ESG report is
also included in the evaluation process.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

FHESEm)
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RE—NAFHEFRUZENEEREAE
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SUSTAINABILITY MEASUREMENT AND
MONITORING

The Group adopted Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules as the
sustainability measurement framework. During the year, the Group
enhanced data collection approaches and recorded certain key
performance indicators (KPIs) as stated in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules. KPIs were measured and recorded regularly by the
ESG workgroup. The Group has set target to full disclosures by
2020.-The Group would go beyond minimum disclosure
requirements where appropriate.

Sustainability performance data was analysed. Both KPIs and
analysis were reported to the management for discussion and
establishment of improvement plans. Improvement targets were
made with reference to the performance recorded for the year
ended 31 March 2017 (the “Baseline”).

ENVIRONMENT

The Group endeavours to minimise pollution and protect the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of
energy and waste. We first implement business activities for which
we bear responsibility and address the environmental issues by
integrating environment considerations in our business. We create
environmental awareness amongst our staff members and
whenever possible and practical to do so. Our aim is to contribute
to the sustainable future and be in harmony with the global
environment.

A1 Emissions

Our electricity consumption accounts for a major part of its GHG
emissions, with local transport contributing less than 5% of the total
GHG emission. Measures aimed at improving energy efficiency are
outlined on page 64.

Deliveries to the same district are gathered in bundles to minimise
travel routes, hence reduce the use of petrol and emissions to air.
In addition, we encourage our staff to use public transport; for
those that are not accessible by public transport means, to carpool
when travelling on business. Discharges to water are made through
public sewages system. There was no discharge to water and/or
land. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to air
emissions during the year.

ARERENTERER

FAEBRALEHRAME- T CERTFENTE
LR - RAFE  AEECRABIBWRES AT
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REVEEDHRRE HERELSTFEATHTE
itk - AREEET AR E-Z-2F2EKE
HHIMRAMBERNER - EEERRT - A5H
BRUEBREREERELENEY -
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BHRBE(TERDMETL -

BiE

FEEINESRRERERE  BRRBERAARE
B ROERERRREENAREREL -2 -
EMEEUEER EEETHERD  YELE
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TZRRTERRRER - EMFOBTHERRK
RERREMER -2 -

A1 EERHD

BN BEEREEREEREE N ERE  KiER
HBREREHEREAENLHTES%  EERRENE
KRR NS 64 B ©
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ENVIRONMENT (conTD)

A1 Emissions (cont’d)

The Group pays attention to hazardous waste such as e-waste. We
have implemented plans to reduce the quantity of e-waste as
outlined on page 65. Disposal of hazardous waste is conducted
safely in accordance to relevant regulations. There was no
prosecution to the Group in relation to hazardous waste handling
during the year.

Non-hazardous waste is sorted in accordance with the possibility of
re-use and recycling. Materials such as paper are collected by
recyclers. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to
non-hazardous waste handling during the year.

B
.
of

RIE @)

A1 BB ()

FEBEREFUREEETEREY - KMCHTF
BRLVEFHRHE  FEHEANLREFEBHE A
EREVCMRBREARAMNZEZRE - RAFE K&
B EZ AR EEREENRE

BEBRZRYUTER IR ERBE | NI RERRIR
DR MRSV HABRKREER - RAFE - KRE
B ES D AREEERYEENRE

2019 2018!
—E-1E —E-\&!

Total air emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes) BERVERAE (EE 1) () 0.006 0.006
NOx (tonnes) A (W) 0.006 0.006
SOx (tonnes) Tty (k) 0.000 0.000
Particulate matter (tonnes) TR T (W) 0.000 0.000

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) (COze tonnes) BERBHRAE (HE1R2) (ZELHESM) 781.001 778.206
Direct emissions (Scope 1) (CO.e tonnes) EEER(EE) (ZELHEEN) 18.647 17.636
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (COze tonnes) B (EE2) (ZEtREENE) 762.354 760.570
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per floor area (CO:e tonnes/m?) BNEAEENEEER (EE2)

(ZELIREEM,FHK) 0.085 0.077
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per employee BEESNEEER (BE2)
(CO2e tonnes/employee) (ZEtREEW (ES) 5.524 5.3656
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) per floor area BENEAEENHEREE (BE1R2)
(COse tonnes/m?) (ZE{LREENR T HXK) 0.087 0.079
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) per employee BREENHHEE (BE1K2)
(COse tonnes/employee) (ZEitmEan E8) 5.659 5.480

Total hazardous waste produced (tonnes)? BEREEYEELE (H)?

Total non-hazardous waste produced (tonnes) BEFEYELHE (H) 7.034 8.345
Total non-hazardous waste produced per floor area (tonnes/m?) BURHAEFMEEREEENEE (W THXK) 0.001 0.001
Total non-hazardous waste produced per employee SREEFELEEEEYEE (H/ES)

(tonnes/employee) 0.051 0.059
Total non-hazardous waste recycled (tonnes) BEFEYERAE () 0.565 0.680

! Certain figures have been restated.
2 Disposal of hazardous waste is negligible.

BRTERERAR-Z-NEFH

! HETRECED -
2 EEERVBEEBHTRE -
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ENVIRONMENT (conTD)

A2 Use of Resources

Electricity

We have been phasing out old air-conditioners by energy-saving
ones since 2016. Indoor temperature remains at 23°C-25°C.

Besides, old halogen lamps in shops have also been gradually
replaced by LED spotlights. It consumes less energy, helps lower
the indoor temperature (which requires less air-conditioning) but
maintains approximate brightness. We are planning to phase out
fluorescent lightings from T8 to T5 which consumes less energy.

Our promotional' light boxes go automatically off from midnight to
morning to reduce energy consumption.

The Group has set target to reduce the total energy consumption
per employee by 10% by 2020 from the Baseline.

Water

Water consumed is for hygienic purpose. Labels of ‘treasure every
drop’ are posted at prominent place next to taps to encourage staff
members to minimise the use of water. We plan to replace old taps
with sensor-type and add flow regulators to control water flow when
feasible. As a supplier of home fittings, we provide a range of
products with green features (eco-sensor, flow regulator, smart
green design) to the market.

RE - HEBRE

B
-
of

RIE @)

A2ERMEMA

g7

BB RACESHAERLEH  EmE
FRERREZE S8 « ERAUBREAIN23°CE25°C

o EHPNEXGRETCESERB/LEDE
KfE o LEDBRARBERBDER - AURFEZEAER
E(ULRER) YAEFHEENRE - RMNES
EZLRAEREDRERNTE R AEIMA TSR -

BAMNEHERNFRER LBERER - U8
/ﬁ/é%% °

AEECREEE  REGI-_Z-ZTF  BUES
BEFUHFERERM A 10% ©

K

SERKDAEGERRE - KEEZEZERNLE
REZESEBIER SBMETIRERMPAK-
B ESERKEEE RN BENKER IR
ATHER T ARERERATHREFHKRE - EAR
ERAEMER BMRmESHESERRER (RR
RRFERR - REAEER - BEERRERT) ©

2019 20183

ZZ-nE Z2—\§F3

Total energy consumption (MWh) BEREFERE CKEE) 1,045.070 1,094.449
Total direct energy consumption (MWh)* HEMREEE KRR 63.105 60.726
Total direct energy consumption per floor area (MWh/m?) BVEARBRNEEEREES CKRE FAXK) 0.007 0.006
Total direct energy consumption per employee (MWh/employee) FEEENEEEREAER KRB ES) 0.457 0.428
Total indirect energy consumption (MWh) RZRERAEE KR 981.966 1,033.723
Total indirect energy consumption per floor area (MWh/m?) BVERRRNBEZEREEE CKRE FHXK) 0.109 0.104
Total indirect energy consumption per employee (MWh/employee) S &EEMNMEEERLERE KRE (ES) 7.116 7.280
Water consumption (m?3) BFEKE (L FK) 928.151 1,150.139
Water consumption per floor area (m3/m?) BUEEEBNEEKE (LK FHK) 0.103 0.116
Water consumption per employee (m%employee) FEREENBEKE LHK EE) 6.726 8.100
Total packaging material (tonnes) BHEMRIEE (W) 3.404 4.352
Total packaging material per floor area (tonnes/m?) BURAEENEEMREE ( T5XK) 0.000 0.000
Total packaging material per employee (tonnes/employee) SEEENEENBEE (W ES) 0.025 0.031

8 Certain figures have been restated.
4 Figure calculated with reference to EIA US.

3 HETRECED -
¢ HFRBEIAUSEHE -
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ENVIRONMENT (conTD)

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
Electricity: Reduction
Details of electricity reduction is set out on page 64.

Paper: Reduction

All office paper and almost all paper for printing the Group’s
publications are Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)-certified or
recycled paper, except old publication (such as catalogues) which
is yet to disseminate. Not only adopting FSC certified paper, the
Group encourages the use of paperless communication. If printing
is necessary, we encourage environmentally friendly printing
manner (such as to print on both sides, reduce font size and
margin). For internal reference document, we upload to intranet or
circulate hardcopies instead of printing one copy for each staff
member. In addition, paper collection tray is placed next to printer
to gather single-side-printed paper for re-use.

Our box packaging fits the size of goods so as to minimise the use
of paper and provide the best protection to the goods contained.
The materials of our carton boxes fulfil relevant safety standards.
Besides, we encourage the use of carton boxes for multiple times.

** FSC is an independent, non-governmental, not-for-profit organisation
established to promote environmentally appropriate, socially beneficial, and
economically viable management of the world’s forests.

Electronic devices: Re-use

Technology advancement leads to shorter lifespan of electronic
devices. Certain equipment becomes obsolete or incompatible to
our operations after software upgrades. We are aware of potential
environmental and health hazards related to disposal of e-waste.
Hence, we have adopted the following initiative:

J Obsolete: Donate to non-governmental organisations such as
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Hong Kong Caritas Computer Recycle Project BEGE
2019 2018°
—E-hE ZE-N\EFS
Total paper consumption (tonnes) HHEES () 9.292 12.628
Office paper (tonnes) HAE B () 5.217 5.928
Paper for printing publications (tonnes) FTEDF ) FA 4% (Rg) 4.075 6.700

5 Certain figures have been restated.
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SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes its success, long-term growth and development
depend upon the quality, performance and commitment of its staff
members. We are committed to providing equal opportunity to our
staff, matching the right people with the right job, and offering them
a suitable platform to develop and excel in their career. Besides,
we keep in mind to treat all staff members fairly and equally. We
are committed to the provision of a healthy and safe workplace and
encourage work-life balance of staff members.

B1 Employment
As at 31 March 2019, our workforce in operations in Hong Kong
was recorded at 138 employees.

Our employment policy adheres to statutory requirements including
but not limited to the Mandatory Provident Fund, Statutory Minimum
Wages, Employees’ Compensation Insurance and Paid Annual
Leave. Competitive packages are offered to attract, retain and
motivate competent individuals. We are dedicated to promoting
equal opportunities for all of our employees in different areas,
including recruitment, compensation and benefits, training, staff
promotion and transfer. All staff members are assessed based on
their ability, performance and contribution, irrespective of their
gender, age, disability, family status, race, religious beliefs or
sexual orientation.

We provide employee benefits such as medical allowance and
transport allowance. The Group supports the staff’'s family life by
providing children’s scholarship. The Group has joined the
Government’s gender mainstreaming network ‘Gender Focal Point’.
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SOCIAL (conTD)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont’d)

B1 Employment (contd)

All of our staff members work on full time basis. Our workforce is
comprised of:

Age group £ # 4 3l
= Below 30 =+5TF

= 30-50 =+ZzE+

B Over50 ®BEET

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

(4
®m Male B
[0 Female &%

AW E
H=Em
EERYTEE(E)
B11E 1% (&)
AEESTHERRET  HARDT
Gender 1% 3l

-~ ~
II s
Length of service Bk #& & &

0-3 years TE=F

I >3-5years ZR=ZHF
B >5-10years ZREZE+HF
B >10-15years ZR+E+EHEF
B >15years EBBETEF

67



68

v

Environmental, Social and Governance Report B - # @R EARE

SOCIAL (conTD)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont’d)

B2 Health and Safety

Our workplace is kept clean and tidy, with adequate work space for
staff members to work in. Apart from that, a number of initiatives
have been carried out to increase the staff awareness in health and
safety at work:

e Occupational safety briefing

> Guide new staff members especially those work in
warehouse or go to construction sites

>  Staff members are able to stop work if they feel unsafe
or'is not properly trained

. Staff handbook (detailing employees’ benefits and welfare,
holiday and leave, working hours, feedback mechanisms)

Allstaff members, before going to construction sites, have attended
safety training. When entering construction sites, they are equipped
with safety helmet and briefed by relevant safety officers.

B3 Development and Training

The Group maintains an open, interactive and motivating working
environment for our staff members. The management reviews its
training and career development programmes with employees. Set
out below are some training and development programmes:

. Sales and product training
> Overseas training: Visit factory overseas

> In-house training: Across senior to junior sales
representatives

o Management training

> For directors and senior management team to keep them
abreast of the latest regulatory requirements, corporate
governance practices, macro-economics and consumer
trends

. Warehouse operation training
. Back office operation training
B4 Labour Standards

We comply with local employment regulations in all locations of our
operations, and do not engage in any forced or child labour.
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Operating Practices

B5 Supply Chain Management

Our customers include contractors, property developers and
dealers. We recognise the uniqueness of requirements of each
customer, and offer a full range of products to satisfy customers’
needs.

The number of major suppliers, in terms of purchase amount, by
geographical region is indicated as below:

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

We pay attention to the operating practices of our suppliers
(including but not limited to employment practices, product
responsibility, anti-corruption policy). We regularly conduct factory
visits to inspect their production capacity, technical capability,
quality control systems, production facilities, testing capability and
personnel quality.

In view of the growing environmental awareness in Hong Kong, we
requested for green features in our products, such as water flow
control and FSC-certified materials. We will continue our efforts in
bringing environmentally friendly products to customers.
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SOCIAL (conTD)

Operating Practices (cont’d)

B5 Supply Chain Management (cont'd)

In selecting installation sub-contractors, we consider a range of
factors such as price, past performance, scale of the project,
technical competence, environmental records, workplace health
and safety standards. Training sessions are held to help sub-
contractors familiarise with the features and installation techniques
of our products. We conduct appraisals to evaluate sub-contractors’
performance.

B6 Product Responsibility

The Group’s objective is to become one of the leading quality
suppliers of architectural builder’s hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value of
the Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting products
that commensurate with their lifestyles. We strive to provide quality
products and services to fulfil customers’ needs; and to establish
the brand and reputation of our Group for customers’ recognition of
our ability to serve them with two fundamental qualities, “sincerity”
and “quality”, which would enable us to build customer loyalty,
allowing us to establish strong customer relationships for future
businesses.

Product safety is our primary concern. The majority of our products
originate from Europe where rigorous product testing regulations
and requirements are in place. Nevertheless, we carry out a
number of measures to ensure product safety, such as warranties
and certificates from manufacturers, tests according to customers’
requirements.

Apart from safety, we also value performance ratings and feedback
from customers, of which feedback identifies areas of improvement.
We have established various communication channels including
corporate website and social media platforms to facilitate and
strengthen communication with our customers. Feedback from
customers is discussed and improvement will be made where
appropriate. Our labelling and advertising materials are reviewed to
ascertain their compliance with relevant marketing communication
practices.

We comply with the latest Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance,
ensuring that the customer information we receive is only used for
its intended purpose. We regularly brief our staff, especially front-
line staff, to take great care in dealing with privacy matters. We
have gradually placed our privacy statement on corporation
publications.

Fan=—4C )

LEEH (F)

B5 (RIS ETE ()

RBEZEDBEK  EMAEEZEEE - flANE
% BERR - RERE  KTEED BRERCHE T
FERRERZ2EE - BRI BEREMEN - B
BREBZBZRMEMNBURZETE - HPET
ZHLGHE D BEHRE o

B6 EREF

AEBHIRBREHELEERETS  H8  HERE
REMMBER - RMREEF 2 EFANBEER
NEEEME  BREALEEZREER - KMAZE
ERMEEERRREREEFEE EEFEK
BFEMIBRIRIERIZRE  EBAKEEY
REEEREEREREF  SEAEEHEEFEY
BERIR 0 BB ARBRFETERS -

ERZZERMANEEZZTRERZ -ARENERE
EEARN  BEHHERAISRERER+TIBE -
BEWL - RMRDFDERERERZ S - HINE
BLEEBNRIEREZE  REFTFHERETAR -

BRTEMRZE  RATEREFNRBFERER
MEFEFEREHAXRENLE - RMERLT
EHBARE  SELEMEREIERTE - UE
ERMBEEMEFNBEE RMATWREFNER
WRBEREHSGE - ARENERERESM I
RER - URFRETHBENTSEMESM -

EMETRFANBEAER (AR RH - BARTWE
MEFERMEFEEERRZ - HATHMHMET (LAR
ARET)ERZENEEAARELREE - A5H
EESKILBERTIDREZET P -

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019 F



"\

v

Environmental, Social and Governance Report B - # @R EARRE

SOCIAL (conTD)

Operating Practices (cont’d)

B7 Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
integrity when doing business. We adopt the code of conduct that
complies with HKEX expectations on corporate governance and
the Independent Commission Against Corruption’s anti-corruption
policies. Our staff handbook has outlined such code of conduct to
all staff members including prevention of bribery. There was no
legal case brought against the Group for corruption during the year.

Subcontract works are made in accordance with the standard
procedure of the Group. Once having received the quotations from
potential contractors, we evaluate each based on a range of factors
such as: price, past performance, scale of the project, technical
competence, environmental records, workplace health and safety
standards. Decisions on subcontract appointments are reviewed
and endorsed by the management of the Group.

Community

B8 Community Investments

The Group is committed to be an active participant in the local
community wherever it operates. Our participation to the community
does not limit to donations but also voluntary works. We also
encourage its employees to do the same to contribute to their
neighbourhood. A care to the society will eventually benefit our
future generations.

FEEDBACK TO THIS REPORT

We welcome comments and suggestions regarding our
environmental and social performance for continuous improvement.
Stakeholders may at any time send their written enquiries and
concerns to the ESG Representative of the Company at its Head
Office as follows:

ESG Representative

16th—18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

esg@ebon.com.hk
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HONG KONG Q-UALITY ASSURANCE AGENCY
——

VERIFICATION STATEMENT

Scope and Objective

Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (“HKQAA”) has been
commissioned by E. Bon Holdings Limited (hereinafter referred to
as “E.-Bon Holdings”) to undertake a limited assurance
engagement in respect of the selected information of
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the
“Report”). Our verification processes are limited to the Report
stating E. Bon Holdings’ ESG performance and achievements from
1st April 2018 to 31st March 2019 (the “Reporting Period”).

The aim of this verification is to undertake a limited assurance
engagement of the selected information stated in the Report with
reference to the “Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Reporting Guide” pursuant to Appendix 27 to Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Main Board Listing Rules”).

This report has been prepared on the basis of the data and
information provided by E. Bon Holdings. Therefore, E. Bon
Holdings is liable and responsible for the preparation of the ESG
Report, including but not limited to any material misrepresentation,
arising out of fraud or error. HKQAA do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Methodology

The process applied in this verification was based on the
International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised), Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information issued by the International
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. The verification
procedure was designed for devising opinions and conclusions to
obtain a limited level of assurance. The extent of this verification
process undertaken covered the criteria set in the ESG Reporting
Guide.

The process included reviewing the internal data collection and
management mechanism, interviewing responsible personnel with
accountability for preparing the Report. Examining the raw data
and supporting evidence of representative samples of data and
information selected for verification was based on a risk-based
approach.
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VERIFICATION STATEMENT (conTD)

Methodology (cont’d)

Our assurance engagement was with respect to the information
within the Reporting Period only and we have not performed any
procedures with respect to any earlier periods or any other
elements included in the 2018/2019 Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report and, therefore, do not express any
conclusion thereon.

Independence

HKQAA was not involved in collecting and calculating the reporting
data, or in the development of the Report. HKQAA'’s activities are
independent from E. Bon Holdings.

Limitation and Exclusions

The verification is carried out based on the data and information
provided by E. Bon Holdings, assuming they are complete and
true.

The following items are excluded from the scope of work:

. Any information not directly linked to the selected
environmental, social and governance data;

J Activities outside the defined reporting period;
J Company strategy and position statements (including any
expression of opinion, belief, aspiration, expectation, aim or

future intention) ; and

o Financial data which is taken from E. Bon Holdings’ Annual
Report and Accounts.
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VERIFICATION STATEMENT (conTD) ZERBE @)

Assurance Conclusion wEh

Based on the verification activities, nothing has come to our EREMWERS  RMEARBIEMEEFERME
attention that causes us to believe that E. Bon Holdings’ verified {SH#{TEERBARNCBRENIEIE TERERER
information for the Reporting Period is not prepared, in all material #EREEASEAERELBIM EHHEIME=-1T+
aspects, with reference to the "Environmental, Social and F#EHWGBE HEREBREIED|)iHEE -

Governance ("ESG") Reporting Guide" pursuant to Appendix 27 to
the "Main Board Listing Rules".

Signed on behalf of Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency EBLEIRER

Bryan Peng 343

Assistant Director, Manufacturing & Service ByIEia e — RE R RIS F
June 2019 2019F 6 A
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INDEX 25l

Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Compliance level Reference (page)
BE - —REBRBEEXEE BRKTE 2E((ER)
Aspect A1: Emissions
FEEAT : B
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 62-63
—RIKE FRERRBEEREHN  AARIHHES FEREZERYNELSHN : feiS

(a) the policies; and
BE R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

BIHBTAREASENEREERAMN

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste

KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data Comply 62-63
BRENEZRALA PR R RS R el

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, intensity Comply 63
BRENERA12 BEREAHKER (MER)EE FeiS
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BEREMIEEA4 FELBEEEVEER (MBR)EE BF

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved Comply 62-63
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KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction Comply 63
BABAENIEEA1IG initiatives and results achieved By
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Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EmA2: ERER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw Comply 64
—MRIEE materials B
BERERER (BEER  KREMEME) MK
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity Comply 64
BRENIEZEA21 RERSSNEER DEEEREEEREE B
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity Comply 64
BEREMIEEA2.2 BEKEREE B
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved Comply 64
BREMIEEA23 R eER AR 8 R TR FeAS
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, Comply 64
BARENIEIZEA24 water efficiency initiatives and results achieved feAS
HRSREGE AR LA B EARERE - UREARAKMETBRAERR
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable, with Comply 64
BREMIEIEA25 reference to per unit produced eAS
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Compliance level Reference (page)
B —REEBRBEREXER fd EHKF 2Z(ER)

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EHA3 : RERRRER

| General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and Comply 65
| —RIEE natural resources Peis
B o REBTAHRERRAREFREREAZENEER
) KPIA3.1 N Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural Comply 65
L ERENEEASA resources and the actions taken to manage them i
B HAEREHHRERAAEFNEAFERCENEEERAYENTE
Aspect B1: Employment
E@EB1 : &
_____ \_‘_\ ! B _General Disclosi\'Jre_ o :: ~ Information on: Comply 66—67
o TREE ' ' EEFHRGEE  BREREA - TEEE - BE - FERE - It REEUR BT
R . ' HibFBRBEF
: s ,’l (@)  the policies; and
) ' BR 5 R
B L (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
. el on the issuer
o BIHBETABEAYENEBEEERAM
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare
K&
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: #REEZTR
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 68
—RIKE BRERMZ2THFRERRERSEEBESREEN BF

(a) the policies; and

B R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

BIHBTAREASENEREEREAM

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards
K&

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EmEB3 : #ERIEI

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at Comply 68
—RIKE work. Description of training activities B
FRARAEESET TFEBEN R R RENBEEK o #HulEIEE
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EmB4 : &5 TXR|

General Disclosure Information on: Comply 68

—RIKE BEALEETSRGIE TH B

(a) the policies; and
BE R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer
BIHBTATERSENEREERAM

relating to preventing child and forced labour
&R

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EmBS : HEEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain Comply 69-70
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[BEB6 : ERMEE
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 70
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(a) the policies; and
B R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
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BIFHBRTABERYENREEERRS

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress
B R
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BEB7: RES
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 71
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(a) the policies; and

B R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

BTHBTARERYENEREEREN

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
&R
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Independent Auditor’s Report

_
pwec

To the Members of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
86 to 177, which comprise:

J the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2019;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

J the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
. Provision for inventory obsolescence

. Provision for impairment of trade and retention receivables
and contract assets
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTD)

Provision for inventory obsolescence

Refer to notes 2.11 and 4.1 to the consolidated financial
statements for the disclosures of the related accounting policies,
judgements and estimates

As at 31 March 2019, the Group held inventories of HK$170 million.

The Group determines the net realisable value (“NRV”) at each
period end based on the estimated selling price less cost to sell
and the estimated quantity to be sold in the future. It requires
significant judgements and assumptions to be made to determine
the estimated selling price and sales quantity of individual products,
including historical experience of selling products of similar nature,
current market conditions and other available information. The
estimations are also subject to uncertainties as a result of future
changes of market trends, customer demands and fashion trends.

We focused on this area because of the significance of the gross
inventory balance to the consolidated financial statements and the
estimation and judgement involved in determining the provision.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We understood, evaluated and tested the key controls by which
management estimated the NRV, and found the assessment
processes to be consistent with those of the prior years.

For products with material balances as at year end, we discussed
with management and evaluated the assumptions on estimated
future sales, which were based on (i) secured orders received from
customers as at year end; (ii) historical sales data in the past two
years which reflected the expected life cycle of similar products;
and (iii) future sales strategies that might require adjustments to
the historical sales pattern for the selected products.

We obtained evidence for these explanations and evaluated the
relevance of these factors by using our industry knowledge. We
tested, on a sample basis, the secured orders from customers and
NRV of products by comparing the estimated selling price and
sales quantity of individual products with the corresponding post
year-end sales data.

We considered these assumptions appropriate based on the
procedures performed above.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTD)

Provision for impairment of trade and retention receivables
and contract assets

Refer to notes 2.8 and 4.2 to the consolidated financial statements
for the disclosures of the related accounting policies, judgements
and estimates

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had trade and retention
receivables of HK$116 million and contract assets of HK$4 million.

Management assesses the provision for impairment of trade and
retention receivables and contract assets based on the lifetime
expected credit losses. These receivables are grouped by shared
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery. The expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experience and are adjusted to reflect the
effects of current conditions as well as forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables. Receivables relating to
customers with known financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection are assessed individually for provision for impairment.

We focused on this area due to the significance of the trade and
retention receivables and contract assets to the consolidated
financial statements and the estimation and judgement involved in
determining the expected credit losses allowance of these
receivables.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We understood, evaluated and tested the key control procedures
performed by which management assessed the expected credit
losses, including its procedures on periodic review of aged
receivables and assessment on expected credit losses allowance
of these receivables.

We tested the accuracy of the ageing report of trade and retention
receivables on a sample basis by tracing to invoices.

We tested the subsequent settlement of trade and retention
receivables on a sample basis by tracing to bank receipts.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTD)

Provision for impairment of trade and retention receivables
and contract assets (cont’d)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (cont’d)

We obtained management’s assessment on the expected credit
losses allowance of these receivables. We corroborated and
validated management’s assessment based on the historical
settlement pattern, correspondence with customers, evidence from
external sources including public search results relating to the
financial circumstances of the relevant customers and market
research regarding the relevant forward-looking information such
as macroeconomic factors applied in management’s assessment.

We considered the estimation and judgement made by
management in determining the expected credit losses allowance
of trade and retention receivables and contract assets were
supportable by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report By ZEEMRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT'D)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

J Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

J Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT'D)

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #LR&é&2mEWKF X

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z-Z-hF=A=+—-HLFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other (losses)/gains, net
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs, net

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation of
financial statements of
foreign operations

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of
properties held for own use

Tax effect relating to revaluation of
properties held for own use
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2019 2018
—2-NE —E-N\&
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#x TR
539,758 584,720
(328,954) (345,419)
210,804 239,301
1,223 994
(2,232) 117
(111,926) (109,134)
(77,563) (76,898)
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76 99
(1,033) (897)
(957) (798)
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(2,201) 2,884
(465) 25,497
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #LR&2mEWKF X

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z-Z-hF=A=+—-HLFE

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Earnings per share (expressed in
HK cents per share)
— Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 93 to 177 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #HZ&8&itn&k

As at 31 March 2019 R=Z-hAF¥=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT-)N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MIEE FHET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BERZRE 16 194,722 189,735
Investment properties REYE 17 34,700 36,100
Deferred income tax assets EIEFEREE 26 4,767 4,491
Trade, retention and other receivables FEUWERR - EWRER R
Hih R 20 14,396 18,070
248,585 248,396
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7E 19 169,546 168,497
Current income tax recoverable o] g B A HA PR B %% 7,983 1,973
Trade, retention and other receivables FEUWEES: - EWREH R
H YRR 20 124,161 171,780
Contract assets EHEE 20 3,677 -
Restricted cash ZREEE 21 - 3,008
Cash and cash equivalents BHERESZEY 22 66,365 62,357
________ sn,7s2 407,615
Total assets BWEE 620,317 656,011
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity holders &2 FfE&EEEER
of the Company
Share capital B 27 60,060 60,060
Reserves ] 28 402,816 419,151
Total equity AR 462,876 479,211
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #& 8t #%ikRx
As at 31 March 2019 R=-ZE-h&E=A=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MIEE FET FET
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables BT EER R H AR R 23 38,655 51,300
Contract liabilities ey N=N 23 54,118 -
Receipts in advance FE U =R - 51,328
Derivative financial liabilities rTEEmERs 576 -
Borrowings VR 24 36,587 41,382
Current income tax liabilities RERFFEHERE 3,047 7,392
132,983 151,402
Non-current liabilities FERBAE
Other provision HihEs 2,500 2,500
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTEHARs 26 21,958 22,898
_________ 24,458 25398
Total liabilities wem 1 57,441 _________ 1 76800
Total equity and liabilities BREZRERE 620,317 656,011

The consolidated financial statements on pages 86 to 177 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2019 and were
signed on its behalf.

FEITTENGRE VR BRELEETEN -
—NERAZTABHE  TRTHESKRESE -

TSE Sun Fat, Henry TSE Sun Po, Tony

BB HEE
Director Director
EE EE

The notes on pages 93 to 177 are an integral part of these %93ZE177HEZMFERAREFEEHBHR—MD -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z-Z-hF=A=+—-HLFE

At 1 April 2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange gain on translation of
financial statements of
foreign operations

Surplus on revaluation of
properties held for own use

Tax effect relating to revaluation of
properties held for own use

Total comprehensive income

Dividends (note 14(a))
Appropriation to statutory reserve
(note 28)

Transactions with owners

At 31 March 2018

The notes on pages 93 to 177 are an integral part of these
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EE AL B (M 28)
EREZRS
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consolidated financial statements.

RERRgER

Share Share Revaluation Merger Capital  Exchange  Statutory  Retained

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
BRA  ROEE EfREE  AO0EE  EAREE  ERRGB LEERE  RDER a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET FET TET FiET TBT FiET TBT
60,060 1,201 122,847 6,979 2,896 (426) 2,128 236,179 431,864
- - - - - - - 44,194 44,194

- - - - - 2,884 - - 2,884

- - 25,497 - - - - - 25,497
- - (4,207) - - - - - (4,207)

- - 21,290 - - 2,884 - 44,194 68,368
- - - - - - - (21,021)  (21,021)
- - - - - - 27 (27) -
- - - - - - 27 (21,048) (21,021)
60,060 1,201 144,137 6,979 2,896 2,458 2,155 259,325 479,211
BRE1TTHZHHALEREMBRE—HD -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z-Z-hF=A=+—-HLFE

At 1 April 2018

Adjustments on adoption of
HKFRS 15, net of tax
(note 2.1.1(b))

Restated balance at 1 April 2018

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange loss on translation of
financial statements of
foreign operations

Deficit on revaluation of properties
held for own use

Tax effect relating to revaluation of
properties held for own use

Total comprehensive income

Dividends (note 14(a))
Appropriation to statutory reserve
(note 28)

Transactions with owners

At 31 March 2019

The notes on pages 93 to 177 are an integral part of these

RZZE-NF@A-H
RaBBHMBREER

FISHMBE - KRR
(H=E2.1.1(b))

RZE-N\FNA-A
EERIE

FERA

Htt2mEKE
BEBNERGBRERZ
E AR
BHIFERNEEMLBA

HHERBRNEZ
HERE

2EKHEAT

RS (FIEE 14(a))
HERED B (M 28)

BREEZRS

RZZ-NFZA=+—-H

consolidated financial statements.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

RERREER

Share Share Revaluation Merger Capital Exchange Statutory  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
RA  RGBE EfRE SO0REE  EXEE  ERRB  LiERHBE  R2ER ait
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET THERT TET TERT TET TERT TET TET TET
60,060 1,201 144,137 6,979 2,896 2,458 2,155 259,325 479,211
_ - - - - - - (7,810) (7,810)
60,060 1,201 144,137 6,979 2,896 2,458 2,155 251,515 471,401
- - - - - - - 15,085 15,085
- - - - - (2,201) - - (2,201)
- - (465) - - - - - (465)
- - 77 - - - - - 77
- - (388) - - (2,201) - 15,085 12,496
_ - - - - - - (21,021) (21,021)
- - - - - - (15) 15 -
- - - - - - (15) (21,006) (21,021)
60,060 1,201 143,749 6,979 2,896 257 2,140 245,594 462,876

FRBE17T7EZHMFARSHREMBERR—ID -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #Z&BE&HER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z=%

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for settlement of
forward contracts
Purchase of property,
plant and equipment
Sales proceeds of property,
plant and equipment
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Interest paid on bank borrowings
(Repayment of)/proceeds from

trust receipt loans
Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year

The notes on pages 93 to 177 are
consolidated financial statements.

—-WEZA=t-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hE —Z2-N\E
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
M &E FET FBT
BEFHoRERE
REEE RS 29(a) 66,092 11,714
EFEH (14,210) (3,753)
RETHELEFRS
_________ °1.882 7,961
RETEBRERE
BRHEHORELR
(2,195) -
BEYE BMERRE
(18,725) (8,446)
W BMERRBHEREBRE
29(b) 55 -
BT E 76 56
rEZEBHAAERE (20,789) __________ ( 8390)
mﬂﬁféibziiﬁ RE
BB RIE 29(c) 12,392 6,112
BEER 29(c) (8,508) (15,675)
BAHRITERAE (1,033) (897)
FERWIBERZ GBR) FiEHE
29(c) (8,679) 12,830
BB (21,021) (21,021)
mEEBAAERE (26,849) (18651)
BERBESSEWTEEM CAD)
4,244 (19,080)
FNRERBESEEY
62,357 79,706
RERRESEEYER (BE) W
(236) 1,731
FRESRBLSEEY
22 66,365 62,357

an integral part of these $93Z177HEZMERREHEEMBRER—ID -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

E. Bon Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business is 16th—18th Floors, First
Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong. Its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing,
wholesale, retail and installation of architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the board of directors on 26 June 2019.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

A VBRI

—REHR

BHTERERAR(RAR ) ARHEHS
HMAZ2BREFELT 0 HFMitEE it
5 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands & B+ Z & 3 ith B A F B RREE1EE
BEE—HEAE16E 181 - HRONEB
BERXZMAERAR ([HA]) 2EMR LT -

RRBNEBEBRAREER - HHBLQARE
EREBRTEARZMBE(HE D REBE
0-#it3% ZERZEZELS  #H8 BE
RERARM

BREARAN ZEGAUBBRRUBITE
5l ZEGREMBERRENR -F-NFARA
“tHABRES=EHAETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of E. Bon Holdings
Limited have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of leasehold land and buildings held for own use,
investment properties and derivative financial
instruments, which are carried at fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

2

TEETHERER

RRZEGAVBBRRARAEIRSHABRE
FIINT - RS EHBN  ZEHRRRABEZRH
FEEHEA -

21 REUEE
BHITERBRATDZGEMIERERTY
RIEMEBEATEMBEREELN(EE
BMEREED ) REB QTR (F622
B)WHEERE - NrE W BEBREMIBE
PRAERERER  WCREERRA
EtrRET REVERTESMT
BCEMELAE  REAARETIR-

RIEEFBUBHRELNFERRS WBR
RAEAETEESG A TREE
BERRAAREESTBERRTRA L -
BREEABHRERN  REBRRRM
AHGESHBRRMSEBEARZHE
R4 iR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEGHBERHBE@m)
POLICIES (conTD)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 21 REEXE(E)
(a) New standards and amendments to standards (a) ZXEERAKFTERRERIEZTE
adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for the financial year
beginning on 1 April 2018:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment
Property

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvement to HKFRSs

2014-2016 Cycle

Except for the adoption of HKFRS 15, the
application of the above new and revised standards
had no material impact on the Group’s results and
financial position.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

FEBCR-ZE-\FOA—HMR
MR EFEERERTHRIEE
BIRAERT AN

BBNERE $HIA
£RE 5K

EBIBRE REEP
RIS 155 SHHKE

&5 (B E % MEZRBR
HEREZEY) BEINE
—HRERE2H%

BEGHER REME
FA0SEET R HEE

EERNBERERL URGAER
F2FBET AR HERR S
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BBUMBRERD EATENBHRE
FAREI A ERIE 95
EMTAEES
MR E LR
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ERMBRERR BRUBREER
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“E-REEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTD)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)

(b) New standards and amendments to standards
that have been issued but are not yet effective
The following new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019
and have not been early adopted:

HKFRS 16
BB BREEDE 1655
HKFRS 17

BBMEHRELERFE 175

HK (IFRIC)-Int 23

BB (AR ERERREES)
— R 235

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

ERETEUNF1HER
BEBGTTEREIRMIBET R

Amendments to HKAS 19

EBGTHERE195R8FT AR

Amendments to HKAS 28

EBETERE 28 HIEFT AR
Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB ERELERE BT R
Amendments to HKFRS 9

BEMKEREERE RIS AR

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

BRI RELEAE105RR
BBGTTERIE 28 BT A

Amendments to HKFRSs

BB ELERERT A

A VBRI

FESTTBEREE @)
21 MRBIEE(E)

(b) EREAE K E KB FER R ER

CHES

THIFER - ERMEIT AR ZED
RZZB-NFNA-BR &K
ZFEHBENELER RERN

Leases

HE

Insurance Contracts

REBEHN

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
FRigBtc T HeEM < RIE

Definition of Material
BERANEE

Employee Benefits

EEEF

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures

REEARREELENRBER

Definition of Business

EBHER

Prepayment Features with Negative
Comparison

BB amENETRETE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between

an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
REFHEBENTREELECHANEELESREE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 cycle

CE-LFERCER - FRAEEMBREER
2 FEBGE

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019 F

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after

RT5 B#s
ZERKZ
FEHBEX

1 January 2019
—E-N&F—-HA—H
1 January 2021
—E-—-%—-F—H
1 January 2019
—E-hAF—H—H

1 January 2020
—E-EF—-F—H
1 January 2019

—E-N¥—-HA—H
1 January 2019

—E-NE—-F—H
1 January 2020
—E-EF¥—-F—H

1 January 2019

—E-NF—A—H
To be determined

1 January 2019

—E—NE-A-H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(b) New standards and amendments to standards
that have been issued but are not yet effective
(cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 provides new provisions for the
accounting treatment of leases and will in the
future no longer allow lessees to account for
certain leases outside the statement of
financial position. Instead, all long-term leases
must be recognised in the statement of
financial position in the form of assets (for the
rights of use) and lease liabilities (for the
payment obligations). Short-term leases with a
lease term of twelve months or less and leases
of low-value assets are exempt from such
reporting obligations. The new standard will
therefore result in recognition of a right-to-use
asset and an increase in lease liabilities in the
statement of financial position. In the
statement of comprehensive income, rental
expenses will be replaced with depreciation
and interest expense.

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for Group’s operating leases. As at
31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$138,160,000 (note 30(b)(i)). Upon
adoption of HKFRS 16, the majority of
operating lease commitments will be
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets. The lease liabilities would
subsequently be measured at amortised cost
and the right-of-use assets will be depreciated
on a straight-line basis during the lease term.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

A VBRI

2 FESITHREE@E)

21 RREEE)
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15T ()
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BB IR EERFE 1655
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

98

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEGHBERHBEm@m)
POLICIES (conTD)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 21 REEXEE)
(b) New standards and amendments to standards (b) EHBfE [ RELRIFER R ZER]
that have been issued but are not yet effective CHENE D,
(cont’d)
(i)  HKFRS 16 “Leases” (cont’d) () BBUBBEERE 1695 H

The Group will adopt the standard for the
financial year beginning on 1 April 2019. The
Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative
amounts for the year prior to first adoption. As
allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group plans to use
the practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are, or contain, leases. The
Group will therefore apply the new definition of
a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are
entered into on or after the date of initial
application.

The expected impacts of the adoption of the other
new standards, interpretation and amendments to
standards are still being assessed by the
management, and management is not yet in a
position to state whether they would have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

g/(#)

AEEER=_Z—-NEFENA
— ARB I REERMZ
2R o REEEEABLB
EBAR BXEEVERE
RERMNEEN RS T -
MEBIMIEHREZLERE 1658
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)
2.1.1Change in accounting policies
This note explains the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(a) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39
that relate to the recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial
instruments, impairment of financial assets

and

hedge accounting. The adoption of

HKFRS 9 resulted in changes in accounting
policies. The new accounting policies are set
out in note 2.8 below.

(i

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

Classification and measurement

On 1 April 2018 (the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9), the Group’s
management has assessed which
business models apply to the financial
assets held by the Group and has
classified its financial instruments into the
appropriate HKFRS 9 categories.

The Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised cost continue with their
classification and measurements upon
the adoption of HKFRS 9.

There is no impact on the Group’s
accounting for financial liabilities, as the
new requirements only affect the
accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit and
loss (“FVPL”) and the Group did not have
any such liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTD)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)
2.1.1Change in accounting policies (cont’d)
(a) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (cont’d)

(ii)

Impairment

From 1 April 2018, the Group assesses
on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost.
The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

The Group has two types of financial
assets that are subject to the new
expected credit loss model in HKFRS 9:

° trade and retention receivables and
contract assets; and

° other financial assets carried at
amortised cost.

The Group was required to revise its
impairment methodology under HKFRS 9
for each of these classes of assets.

While cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9,
the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

A VBRI

2 FESITHREE@E)

21 REUREEHE)

2.1.1 B RKEE (F)
(a) BBUBHEEREIN £
FTA|(#E)

(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)
2.1.1Change in accounting policies (cont’d)
(a) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (cont’d)

(ii)

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

Impairment (cont’d)

Trade and retention receivables and
contract assets

For trade and retention receivables and
contract assets, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected losses for all these receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses,
these receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.
The contract assets relate to unbilled
work in progress and have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade
and retention receivables for the same
types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected
loss rates for trade and retention
receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets.
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21 RREEE)

2.1.1 B HEKEE (F)
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(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTD)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)
2.1.1Change in accounting policies (cont’d)
(a) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (cont’d)

(ii)

Impairment (cont’d)

Trade and retention receivables and
contract assets (cont'd)

Future cash flows for each group
receivables are estimated on the basis of
historical loss experience on payment
profiles of sales over the periods before
the end of the reporting period, adjusted
to reflect the effects of current conditions
as well as forward looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has identified the
Gross Domestic Product (GDP) and the
unemployment rate of the region in which
it sells its goods and services to be the
most relevant factors, and accordingly
adjusts the historical loss rates based on
expected changes in these factors.

Receivables relating to customers with
known financial difficulties or significant
doubt on collection are assessed
individually for impairment allowance and
determined whether specific provisions
are required. Receivables are written off
when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery.

The Group has assessed the adoption of
expected credit loss model on trade and
retention receivables and contract assets
and the change in impairment
methodologies has no significant impact
to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and the opening loss
allowance as at 1 April 2018 is not
restated.

A VBRI

2 FESITHREE@E)

21 REUREEHE)

2.1.1 B RKEE (F)
(a) BBUBHEEREIN £
FTA|(#E)

(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)
2.1.1Change in accounting policies (cont’d)
(a) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (cont’d)

(ii)

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

Impairment (cont’d)

Other financial assets carried at
amortised cost

The Group’s other financial assets carried
at amortised cost include deposits and
other receivables in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The
impairment loss of other financial assets
carried at amortised cost is measured
based on the 12-month expected credit
loss. The 12-month expected credit loss
is the portion of lifetime expected credit
loss that results from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime expected credit loss.

The Group has assessed the adoption of
the expected credit loss model on
deposits and other receivables as at 1
April 2018 and the change in impairment
methodologies has no significant impact
to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and the opening loss
allowance as at 1 April 2018 is not
restated.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)
2.1.1Change in accounting policies (cont’d)
(b) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with

Customers”

HKFRS 15 establishes a single revenue
recognition framework and replaced HKAS 18,
HKAS 11 and related interpretations. The
adoption of HKFRS 15 resulted in changes in
accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. The new accounting
policies are set out in note 2.8 below. The
Group has adopted the modified retrospective
approach with the cumulative effect on initial
adoption recognised at the date of initial
application, which is 1 April 2018, and
comparative information has not been
restated.

The following tables show the adjustments
recognised for each individual line item. Line
items that were not affected by the changes
have not been included. The adjustments are
explained in more details below.

Consolidated statement of REUBMRRE (FE)
financial position (extract)

Contract assets BREE

Amounts due from customers for EWEF 28X TRER

contract work

Inventories FE

Contract liabilities BHEE

Receipts in advance fauk A

Amounts due to customers for ENEE2ANIRER
contract work

Current income tax liabilities KEFEHERE

Retained earnings R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2

A VBRI

FESTTBEREE @)
21 MRBIEE(E)

Note
MEE

2.1.1 B RKEE (F)

(b)

31 March 2018
—E-N\F
ZA=+—-H
As originally
presented

N_ES
HK$'000
TER

15,277
168,497

51,328

2,288
7,392
259,325
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BB IR ERIFE 1555
BEFEH M
BEBMEREERE 15588
37 — 1B #e 58 U &5 Y B4R 48 3 B
REBGTERNE18 - F
BETERE 11 R EER
B - RNEBTHEREED
FISEEHETHREHR
GEMEREBERANSESR
B o e HOREN T XM
2.8 o REERALIEITH
BWAI A E X P B (A
—E-)\EMA—R)®ER
NERANBFHE b
ERHEARET o

TREIEEHMFIER
RENAL - TEHENM
5B B T RIEEN « BEH

BAEET FHEERE -
1 April 2018
—B-N\F
mA—A
Impact of
HKFRS 15 Restated
BRUK
BEER
E15RNTE RE5|
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
1,322 1,322
(15,277) -
9,365 177,862
58,484 58,484
(51,328) -
(2,288) -
(1,648) 5,744
(7,810) 251,515



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESTBEHSE@
POLICIES (conTD)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 21 REEXE(E)
2.1.1Change in accounting policies (cont’d) 211 EFBELZE (1)
(b) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with (b) BBABEIREERE 155K
Customers” (cont’d) BEFEH M (1)
The impact on the Group’s retained earnings HEAEER-—Z-NFOA
as at 1 April 2018 is as follows: —BREGNNZENT
Note HK$'000
By =E FHET
At 31 March 2018, as originally R-ZB-N\E=A=+—-8"
presented NBEE5 259,325
Accounting for the provision of BHIERBHNSTEE
construction services (i) (9,458)
Increase in current income tax AR FTE R B S N
liabilities (i) 1,648
As at 1 April 2018, as restated R-ZB-NFHA—RH KE5 251,515
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTD)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)
2.1.1Change in accounting policies (cont’d)
(b) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (cont’d)

Note:

(M)

(ii)

Accounting for costs to fulfil a contract

In relation to construction contracts previously
accounted under HKAS 11, the Group continues to
apply output method in estimating the progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation after the adoption of HKFRS 15. Under
HKAS 11, construction costs were charged to profit
or loss by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract, which is measured by reference to
either surveys of work performed or actual stage of
completion of the contract work that have been
performed to date. Under HKFRS 15, costs that
related to fulfilling performance obligations are
expensed as incurred. Deferred materials of
HK$9,365,000 were reclassified from amounts due
from customers for contract work to inventories.
Construction costs of HK$9,458,000 that have been
incurred but deferred and included in amounts due
from customers for contract work under HKAS 11
were charged to retained earnings. The related tax
effect of HK$1,648,000 was recognised in tax
payable and included in adjustment to retained
earnings.

Presentation of contract assets and contract
liabilities

Reclassifications were made as at 1 April 2018 to
reflect the terminology used under HKFRS 15.

Contract assets recognised in relation to
construction contracts were previously presented as
amounts due from customers for contract work
within trade, retention and other receivables.

Contract liabilities recognised in relation to
construction contracts and sales of goods were
previously presented as amounts due to customers
for contract work within trade and other payables
and receipts in advance.

A VBRI

2 FESITHREE@E)

21 REUREEHE)
2.1.1 B RKEE (F)

BB ERIE 1555 K

BEFEHR K2 ()

(b)

MEE -

(M)

(i)

BITEHRAGTRE
BERRIES BETAER
FENMRARNELESHM
= AEEREREBUE
REEBE15H B EER
AELZGTRHEHNE
EWEE - RIBBBETE
BISE115% BERAS R
BHTERBEBTAEBE D
SECETIRALERE
SHLIEERREHNIRN
BREERITE - REFH
ISR RIS 155% B
BITBHAETEBEMNEAR
REERZH - EEHB
9,365,000 7t & # FE UK &
FRENIREREHS
HEFE  -BEELEBEL
WREEBSFHERE 11
BHAEKREFZEHT
BEHRAMEERKX
9,458,000 T C it AR B
mAe HENREEE
1,648,000 7T 1A FE {3 1 18
®’E > Wt ARBEAA
o

2IENEERAGHNRE

R-ZZE-NFNA-RE
o EEBIBREE

e
RIS 15 SR PT AMRE — 2K ©

MEEENEANENE
EBEEYARK - BYR
B 5k R EL it FE W R R FE I
BFZEHTIRERRIE -

MEESHRHEELE R
RNAENEEBEUEN
AR R R H At BE AT 5 R T UK
RENENEFZEHNT
AR TIH o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)
2.1.1Change in accounting policies (cont’d)

(b) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (cont’d)
The amount by each financial statements line
items affected in the current year and year to
date by the application of HKFRS 15 as
compared to HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 that were
previously in effect before the adoption of
HKFRS 15 is as follows:

Consolidated statement of GEXENER (BE)
comprehensive income
(extract)

Revenue g

Cost of sales HERA

Income tax expenses FREREX

Profit for the year attributable to KARMEERE
equity holders of the Company FERF

Eamings per share (expressed SREF (AEREL
in HK cents per share) REM)
— Basic and diluted —EAREE

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

A VBRI

2 FESITHREE@E)

21 RREEE)
2.1.1 B HEKEE (F)

(b)

BB IR ERIFE 1555
BEEF&EX K I(4E)
LR E BB RS LE
BISE15ERE R BB
ZRAIE18HE R BEBETER
FUE AEELAFERTF
EZS2&UERREEW
SHEHREATEVBRE
ZAIE15FEMEZE 2 FEN
T :

For the year ended 31 March 2019
B2-Z-hEF=A=+-ALEE

Amounts
before the
adoption of
HKFRS 15
HHREER
F15%5
o+
HK$°000
Tin

539,688
328,285
4,361

15,587

2.60 cents &1l

Effects of the
adoption of Amounts as
HKFRS 15 reported
RiangE
B HRE R
F155288 YR
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TER
70 539,758
669 328,954
(97) 4,264
(502) 15,085

(0.09) cents&fl  2.51 cents &l
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #& B HmEK =
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBESE®

POLICIES (conTD)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 21 REEXEE)

2.1.1 B RKEE (F)
BB ERIE 1555 K
BEFEHR K2 ()

2.1.1Change in accounting policies (cont’d)
(b) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with (b)
Customers” (cont’d)

108

Amounts
before the Effects of the
adoption of adoption of Amounts as
HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15 reported
B EER RAE B
F155A1 HMEREEL
&8 FEI5HzEE 23&5E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TERT TERT
Consolidated statement of Z&BIBRRE HE)
financial position (extract)
Amounts due from customers FEWEF & TR
for contract work 9,502 (9,502) -
Inventories =8 168,143 1,403 169,546
Contract assets EHEE - 3,677 3,677
Current income tax recoverable Uk [E 4 H3 Fr 5% 6,574 1,409 7,983
Trade and other payables FEAT BRI HL A FE SR 38,419 236 38,655
Amounts due to customers EREEZEHIRIER
for contract work 1,517 (1,517) -
Receipts in advance FE Uk ZE 47,168 (47,168) -
Contract liabilities EHEaE - 54,118 54,118
Current income tax liabilities AHEFFEFas 3,383 (336) 3,047
Exchange reserve R 291 (34) 257
Retained earnings R &R 253,906 (8,312) 245,594

At 31 March 2019
R=-B—h&E=B=+—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTTHEREE @)
POLICIES (conTD)
2.2 Subsidiaries 22 MfBRF
2.2.1Consolidation 221 #E5HKHE

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.

2.2.2Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

222

MELRAANEEEEEEGE
2EBE (BREERER) - EXKH
BBESHER  EBMAERNEE
ZEAEER REREIEBHE
BERAEIMEEZER®R  £&
BEN TR B o B AR BES
RERZAEEERGSAR X
HR&LLZEHE R FBHFEEAR-

SEARAEZRE - HHREE
AARERS 2 RER W T U
o RERBETTUHE - 1A
FE WBARZK2HEEFRH
AE LEAEE B -
B o

BRIBEHE

M B A B IR B R AN BRBE S
IR - RATEERE 2HERAR
o MBARZEEABAATRE
W e FEUR AR SRR ©

MREBBERREBAHE AT
ZEHEWRABEE - HMEE LI
HRRERAEBBLRSPHER
RIREHWREEFEH(BEEHE)
ZHRE(E - ABEARBEREZE
REZREKHHEQRIREFER
BRI -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors that make
strategic decisions.

2.4

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented within “Other gains/(losses), net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2 EE

23

2.4

A VBRI

SETBOREE @)

2RI E
HENBRROBELERRERMER
BEEEH B 2FARE - AEKEE
RREWAREREHRBEERE 2HT
EE AEIRERRIMEE I
R o

IE]mE

(a) WEERZZEH
REBEEER 2 MBHRRMAIIE
BEYUZEREEMEETELAR
BeEWTE(WRER ] - 5e
MHHmRBET2S] - BTHERLD
AYEERRAREZ25EE -

(b) XEREE
INERXGHRARSREEEHTE
ZEEBHcEZBREANEE
Mo ZENERFELEZEL KR
REBUREUINNETEZERE
EREBUFKERBREELCE
HNBERBEEEEAER -

FBEELZWSERESEEINGEERE
WwEmEm [ Hilas (B8 2
EIZ25 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (conTD)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (cont’d)
(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group

FESTHERUE @)

24 SNEBRE(E)
(c) FEHAF
DEEREEINERTE MBS

entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as

BErRER(ETRESNEERE
KECE®) 2 XERUBRRE
UTHERERZFER -

follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of i)y BORIZBMBHRRERAZ
financial position presented are translated at EEREBERZVBMRR T
the closing rate at the date of that statement of BEzWHERRE |
financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of (iy BOHEEEZEKERAZK

comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings are stated at revalued
amount. Property, plant and equipment, other than
leasehold land and buildings, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their
revalued amount, being the revaluation value at the date
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does
not differ significantly from that which would be
determined using revaluation values at the reporting
date.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

(i)

m R X IR TIERRE (B
FHEEL R ERR S A
ERCRGFEZEEY
B ERERT KA
TARXSGBHPZERR
), R

FERLEL cEXEHEE
Hit2E W o

25 YE- -BEREE
HAELTHEEFUEEEMBEIIR - BRHE
EXMEREFIN X BERRER
RAHRBTHTERZSTREBBARK -

HET HEEFRESHBRRRAE
HEEMELER 2EREERZEM
B RFHTE MER A REER)J
R HETHEEFEIEMEMRL 8
REREERERBEA2EHEETS
EEERER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEGHBERHBEm@m)
POLICIES (conTD)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d) 25 Y% BERRKRHE(E)

112

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings is credited to the revaluation
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same assets previously
recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is
credited to the profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an
expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any,
on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost or revalued amounts over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Leasehold land Over the shorter of unexpired

EMAELERFELE 2 BB NS
BAEMMHE  HRBEE-EERT
AERABMAX 2 EMGRE  BIZE Mg
BABREA  MELRAHIRZBERR °
BEMEEELZIREFERNE  HEB
ERBARZEE LA EMG 2 (W
) AIEER M °

EeRAGERERS AR EEEE
BI% o EMAER THBREBER
EEAEES PEY Y SR e
BrRARTENER St AEE
EEENER A EEEHAE EA) -
BESTHREBCERLBE
BT AT EE > MR A
B o

M- BERRBZITEDZRMGE AE
REREERAREHEEAERED
B EaOT

HELH REH 2 HEFHH505F

and buildings term of lease or 50 years RigF (UBIEE A%E)

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of HEMEEE HEFHSSF

lease terms or 5 years (@ ESES-Y )

Furniture, fixtures 20% B £ 20%
and equipment RFEB

Motor vehicles 20% RE 20%

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

EENEAFHRNSREHRETRE
RAEIE (EA) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

25

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amounts and
are recognised in the profit or loss. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained earnings as a
movement in reserve.

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
profit or loss within “Other gains/(losses), net”.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

2

25

2.6

2.7

3

A VBRI

SETECREE @)

M - BB R&RE(E)
FEEZREESRAEMGT TRESHE -
HERHE E BN MR = AT E £ 48 -

HEZWSERBBZAEREREEZ
EHEE YHEBEAER  RHEE
HEER  BEAMGESZREEEM
RBZEBENIERREEZDHEARE
B o

REME
REMXTZEFEAELHEET &
ERAUNEASRESNEEIWE - B
WHBHAREEER - REWMEADSEK
it BEMEBEREZEAR (HEM)
BERAR - RIOKERR  REWEE
DNAEIER - HERINEPEERRE R
SAHMEENARTE  2ABERER
TEEE HEFE ERETEER
ME - WEHFIRR =P E 2 EAEEE
HAR - AREEFHREBERZAN[EMIK
&/ (F18)  FHEIAK-

FERMEERE
ERESTR2EEDABE B8F
FETRENR - REEH2EE B
BESHHRUER NS BRIREE 8
LW E FETRERT - REBEBR
EECRAEBHATRESE 28
‘R ANEEEUEE 2R ARENR
HENAREREEME ZHRSES
o NEFfLRER  EERTORBR
REnE(REEHEMN) 2BEBRH
B-BRHEN CHRBEZFEHME
ERE®E IR E DRE 2 TR tEE
TR e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTTHEREE @)
POLICIES (conTD)
2.8 Financial assets 28 SRMEE
2.8.1Classification 28158

114

From 1 April 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured at amortised cost; and

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss).

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

2.8.2Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the
group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

2.8.2

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019 F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (conTD)

2.8 Financial assets (cont'd) 28 SREE(HE)
2.8.3Measurement 283 5tE

FESTHERUE @)

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the group
classifies its debt instruments:

RIVIGHERE - AEERARER
EEREE  HERMEEYIHRL
REFABRZ(RIAETAE
w= BmERBREREERE
BAENREKAE - BAREFAR
BENERMEETZHANEBREPX

EEBEEABRATETASREE
NRERBRBHABRRETERFE
IR AREMEENEREL
J%z o

EHFTA

BB TANRETERRRAEE
EREENEBRRARZEEEN
RERBREH AEEHEBTA
ETHEN=BFERRNT

— Amortised cost —  EERAR
Assets that are held for collection of BUBMEHNESHRE(MZ
contractual cash flows where those cash flows EREREARATHERSE

represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit
or loss. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The
Group’s financial assets carried at amortised
cost comprise “trade and retention
receivables”, “deposits and other receivables”,
“restricted cash” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

RAB)MFEZEEDE
HMERATE WESRE
EZFEBWAERERAZX
ERF A BUWA o RIETHER
EEZAEMUEREEIE
ERERER - BEBEBER
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—fERE - AEEREHK
FIENERMEERERS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.8 Financial assets (cont’d)
2.8.3Measurement (cont’d)
Debt instruments (cont’d)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”)

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

A VBRI

2 FESITHREE@E)

28 S@WMEE(E)
2.8.3 i1E (&)
B TA (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (conTD)

2.8 Financial assets (cont’d)
2.8.3Measurement (cont’d)
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Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.8 Financial assets (cont’d)
2.8.4Impairment

From 1 April 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and retention receivables and contract
assets, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables. Details on how the
Group determines the expected credit losses are
set out in Note 3.1(c).

2.8.5Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as fair
value through profit or loss and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise,
they are classified as non-current.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEETBREE@

POLICIES (conTD)

2.8 Financial assets (cont’d)
2.8.5Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018
(cont’d)
(a) Classification (cont’d)

28 S@WMEE(E)
285 BEZ-E—-\F=/A=+—HEH
JEFEE ()

(a) 7 (E)

(i) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the

(i) EFRREWF
ERREWRRIEEE
ERAEEMNREE
kI |AEERT SR
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ZEEBHIAR
BEE HEERIES
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reporting period. These are classified as B12E@AFRENZ
non-current assets. The Group’s loans MBS BREER
and receivables comprise “trade, BRERFERBERE -
retention and other receivables”, rEBZERRER
“restricted cash” and “cash and cash MHERESHBMRRE
equivalents” in the consolidated [FEUBR R - EUWIR R

statement of financial position.

(b) Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the profit or loss. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.8 Financial assets (cont’d)
2.8.5Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018
(cont’d)

(c)

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or a group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.9

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

2.11

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The gain or
loss relating to the fair value re-measurement is
recognised immediately in the profit or loss within “Other
gains/(losses), net”.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.12 Trade, retention and other receivables

Trade and retention receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade,
retention and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade, retention and other receivables are recognised
initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTD)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held
at call with banks.

2.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

2.17 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date in the region where
the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the statement of
financial position date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (conTD)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (cont’d)

FESTHERUE @)
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(b) Deferred income tax (cont’d)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are not provided on
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries because the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
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will be available against which the temporary o
differences can be utilised.
(c) Offsetting (c) Y

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits
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Pension obligations BUKSEHR
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which AEMRFFEREAEBO—EAEBFER
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. ENEEMRRZRANGTE - EZESY

The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. A
defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a
defined contribution plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.20 Provisions

2.21

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as finance cost.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts and returns. The Group recognises revenue
when goods are transferred or services are rendered to
the customer.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for the services that the Group has transferred
to a customer. In addition, incremental costs incurred to
obtain a new contract, if recoverable, are capitalised as
contract assets and subsequently amortised when the
related revenue is recognised. A contract liability is the
Group’s obligation to render the services to a customer
for which the Group has received consideration from the
customer. A contract liability is recognised by the Group
when the customer pays consideration in advance before
the Group satisfy the performance obligation to the
customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTD)

2.21 Revenue recognition (cont’d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Sales of goods

The Group sells architectural builders’ hardware,
bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in the
wholesale and retail market. Revenue from sales of
goods is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods are delivered to
the customer.

Contract revenue

The Group engages in importing, selling and
installation of kitchen collections, and other
construction and decoration works to contractors
and property developers. Revenue from the
services rendered by the Group is recognised over
time as the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset or work in progress that the
customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The Group has applied the output
method in recognising the revenue from
construction contracts over time. The progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation of construction contracts is measured
with reference to either surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract work.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is
recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Finance income

Finance income is recognised using the effective
interest method to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

2.22 Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTD)
2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from borrowings and interest-bearing bank deposits.
Interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. Interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk.

As at 31 March 2019, if the interest rate had
increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year and retained earnings would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$149,000 (2018:
increase/decrease by HK$119,000). The 50 basis
point increase/decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual
reporting date.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNTD) 3 W¥RRER@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d) 31 HBEKREZE(HE)
(b) Foreign currency risk (b) SHEREE

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with most
of the sales transactions settled in Hong Kong
dollars. However, foreign currencies are required to
settle the Group’s purchases from overseas
suppliers.

To manage their foreign exchange risk arising from
certain future commercial transactions and
recognised liabilities, entities in the Group use
forward contracts, transacted with external financial
institutions. Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognised
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency.

At 31 March 2019, if the EURO had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HKD with all other
variables held constant, profit for the year would
have changed as follows. The changes are mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of EURO denominated cash and bank
deposits, trade payables and borrowings.

Post-tax profit (decrease)/
increase when EURO
— strengthened by 5% — HE5%
— weakened by 5% — RE5%

EBELRUAT 286 -
BB BEF ORl4), 150

FEBMIEREBEE  MAHD
HEXZHUBLTER - BAEE
IMEREE BB E AT KA BIE A SN -

REEBTARRBERS RERE
BFEENIMNERR - AEEET
BREINSMBRERZBERR
HEH - ERREERZHCHER
BEUGFERIEERITERSE
EINE R o

RZZB-NF=ZA=+—-H B&H
BEABTEEFHES% WA
BHMSBERTE  AIFEER
AEEENT - SBEEHRBELL
BEABEN2RERBITENR E
HERRRERELEE L WG BB
FREg e

Year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\&
HK$°000 HK$'000
Tl Fit
(1,807) (2,333)
1,807 2,333
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTD)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c) Creditrisk

(i)

(i)

Risk management

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash and cash equivalents, trade, retention
and other receivables and contract assets.

To manage the risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, deposits are placed to reputable
or state-owned banks with sound credit rating
and the Group considers the credit risk to be
insignificant.

The Group trades with recognised and
creditworthy third parties only. It is the Group’s
policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, the Group has policies
in place to ensure that credit terms are made
to customers with an appropriate credit history
and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, trade, retention and other
receivables and contract assets represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation these financial assets.

Impairment

The Group has two types of financial assets
that are subject to the new expected credit
loss model in HKFRS 9:

o trade and retention receivables and
contract assets; and

o other financial assets carried at amortised
cost.

While cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss as at 31 March 2019
was immaterial.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTD)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c) Credit risk (cont’d)

(i)

Impairment (cont’d)

Trade and retention receivables and contract
assets

The Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which permits the use
of the lifetime expected losses for trade and
retention receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, these
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled
work in progress and have substantially the
same risk characteristics as the trade and
retention receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded
that the expected loss rates for trade and
retention receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

Future cash flows for each group receivables
are estimated on the basis of historical loss
experience on payment profiles of sales over a
period of 24 months before the end of the
reporting period, adjusted to reflect the effects
of current conditions as well as forward looking
information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables. The Group has identified the
Gross Domestic Product (GDP) and the
unemployment rate of the region in which it
sells its goods and services to be the most
relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors.

Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection are assessed individually for
impairment allowance and determined whether
specific provisions are required. Receivables
are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery.

3

A VBRI

B R SR (@)

3.1

R E B E & ()
(c) fF=EmEREGE)
(i) JeifE (#&)
BRERRERRERRE
HEE
FEEEREBMBIREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTD)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c) Credit risk (contd)
(i) Impairment (cont’d)
Trade and retention receivables and contract
assets (cont’d)
Based on the Group’s assessment, the
expected credit loss rate of trade and retention
receivables and contract assets is close to
zero and the loss allowance provision was
immaterial during the year ended 31 March
2019.

Other financial assets carried at amortised
cost

The Group’s other financial assets carried at
amortised cost include deposits and other
receivables in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The impairment loss of other
financial assets carried at amortised cost is
measured based on the 12-month expected
credit loss. The 12-month expected credit loss
is the portion of lifetime expected credit loss
that results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime expected credit loss.

Based on the Group’s assessment,
management considers that the expected
credit loss is immaterial as at 31 March 2019.

(d) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the shorter and longer
term.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group held cash and
cash equivalents of HK$66,365,000 (2018:
HK$62,357,000) that could be readily realised to
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.
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(c)

(d)

=B (&)

(i) JBifE (&)
BRERRERRERRE
HEE (E)
ERAEENFMGE B2
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* o
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aE
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RZE-AEFE=A=+—8 %X&
BEEERERESEEY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNTD) 3 W¥RRER@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d) 31 HBEKREZE(HE)
(d) Liquidity risk (contd) (d) #BELEE (&)

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the remaining
contractual maturities of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities, based on

A=E-—NER=F-NE=H
=t+—B  AEERALTEBEA
BRRSREZSMAMZHBTE

undiscounted cash flows, are summarised below: BEEHAMENT
Total
contractual Between Between Between
undiscounted Less than 3 months 1and 2 and Over
cash flows 3 months and 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
BEKRE =A%
HeRE DPR=M@A —FR -ZMER MELER BBRF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
Asat31March2019  R=B-h&
=A=+-H
Trade and other payables FE{}BRE: K E A5 38,657 38,657 - - - -
Borrowings (note) RG]
— unsecured —EEA 33,768 20,144 13,624 - - -
— secured — BHEH 3,079 355 1,064 1,418 242 -
Foreign exchange forward SMNERHE LK
contract 576 576 - - - -
— Inflow —RA (17,628) (17,628) - - - -
— Outflow — R 18,204 18,204 - - - -
Asat31 March2018 R=-T-N\fF
=A=t+-H
Trade and other payables FE{}ERF K& H bR FR 51,300 51,300 - - - -
Borrowings (note) [EENCES
— unsecured —EKR 37,089 25,873 11,216 - - -
— secured — B 4,463 353 1,057 1,409 1,644 -
Note: According to Hong Kong Interpretation 5, “Presentation of M REEFBRBESRIBHRRZ

132

Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause”, if a term loan agreement includes an overriding
repayment on demand clause (“callable feature”), which
gives the lender a clear and unambiguous unconditional
right to demand repayment at any time at its sole
discretion, a borrower shall classify the term loan as a
current liability in its statement of financial position, as the
borrower does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period. Accordingly the long-term portion of
the Group’s bank borrowings of HK$1,642,000 (2018:
HK$3,007,000) were classified as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2019.

23 — ERAHBEEEREEZ
BRR2EHERZSE] EHE
AHEEETEE P ZEERE
BHRA(TESED  B8FERAE
M BA 7 2 SR AR 1 R R AT B B 2 Y
BERER - AMERA BRI R
REBEHERPEARBERE
BEBERAILEE EEEER T
BEEEEHRIELZRE [
#HRLT-ZEBA-El R=F
—AFE=R=+—8  KEERT
EFREE S 51,642,000 7T (=
ZT— \£ :3,007,00087T) ' ER
FEUBMRRSBARBERE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conTD)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives on capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt
is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position
plus net debt.

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group had a net
cash position. Gearing ratio is not applicable.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

B R SR (@)
32 BXRER

FEBERERABERBRELEERE
WIFERE  EMBRARRERDR
ERHMEFOEARESERZERR
BEUREE AR

REFIHABELER  AEERNEH
BINTFRRNRESE BRRED
BR - BITHRMD  AHEEEURD
&% -

AEERBEESBHRERAELR
IR RF 1T —RIEK © L RIZE
HFRERUEARBETE - ERFHER
LBEERRERREEEBYHE -&
FRBERGEEVBRMRRRAE 2 [ ]
hnEEIRFREAE -

R-B-NER=E-NF=F=+—
B AEEFRSMKN  AESMEL
3 R o

133



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNTD) 3 BKEREE@
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AAREME

134

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets (current
portion), including trade, retention and other receivables,
restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents; and the
Group’s financial liabilities, including trade and other
payables, borrowings, approximate their carrying
amounts due to their short-term maturities.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings classified
under property, plant and equipment and investment
properties are carried at fair value. Details of the fair
value measurement of these leasehold land and
buildings are disclosed in note 16 and note 17,
respectively.

The Group measures its fair value of the financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2019 by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2019:

HRAEESREE (D) (BEE
WERR - BB RERREMEBYRN - 2
RHUREURRERREEEY) kA
SETREE(BEEMRAREMES
o BERRERRES  AAnERHE
IRE{EARE -

AEEPERYE BERRERREE
MEZHETHREFTRAABIE-
ZERETHREFAREHEZFHE
DRIAMETE16 R 17IHE -

REEZARFEQAIABZHERMFT
RaABBENER  SFER-ZE-NF
ZAZt+-HEAABEIRZERIA
ZANRE - BERW ABBIYRT XA
MAEFALDAERBAN=EER :

. HREERREEIRERTEN
HRECRKERAE)(F1E) -

. BRTE1BMBENREN  ZE
ENEENTHEENEGEAR
B AREEEPIMER) HEE
(BRBER) (B2R) -

e  EENEEYFREBETEEDSH
BEo@ABE (DFTBEEAAH
B)(E3E) -

TREINAEERZ-ZZ—-HNLEFE=AH
=t+-HRAAREIRZEHBIA :

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-E E=fE e et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FER FERT FET

As at 31 March 2019 R-ZB-AFE=R=+—H

Liabilities afE

Foreign exchange forward HMNEERBREN —T/HE
contracts — not qualified for ERERE S
hedge accounting

(576) - (576)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

4.1 Provision for inventory obsolescence

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
evaluates the ageing of inventories, their historical sales
pattern, their subsequent utilisation and other factors and
compare the carrying value of inventories to their
estimated net realisable values. The identification of
inventory obsolescence and estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventory and impairment
provision in the year in which such estimate has been
changed.

4.2 Provision for impairment of trade and retention

receivables and contract assets

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade and
retention receivables and contract assets based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s historical default rates,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. The
estimation of expected credit losses requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the carrying value of receivables and loss for the
impairment of receivables recognised in the periods in
which such estimates have been changed.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (conTD)

4.3

4.4

Recognition for contract revenue over time

The Group uses the output method in accounting for its
construction contracts for sales and installation of kitchen
collections, and other construction and decoration works.
The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is determined by reference to
independent surveys of work performed or actual stage
of completion of the contract work. The Group reviews
and revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract
costs, variation orders and contract claims prepared for
each construction contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted construction income is determined in
accordance with the terms set out in the relevant
contracts. Budgeted construction costs which mainly
comprise sub-contracting charges and costs of materials
are prepared by the management on the basis of
quotations from time to time provided by major
contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the Group’s
management conducts periodic review on the
management budgets by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in
estimating the total contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims which may have an
impact in terms of progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Valuation of leasehold land and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is the current prices in an
active market for similar properties. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information from the
valuations of leasehold land and buildings performed by
external professional valuers by using the open market
value approach. If the Group used different valuation
techniques, the fair value of the leasehold land and
buildings may be different and thus may have an impact
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (conTD)

4.5

Income tax

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred income tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Management’s assessment is regularly reviewed and
additional deferred income tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

5 REVENUE
Sale of goods EmiHE
Contract revenue aRE
Timing of revenue recognition: YRR TSR RS
— At a point in time — RE—RFR 2
— Over time — MBS

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER
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fitl 1R 7] BEA AR SR FE SR B T UK S B 78
e BIEEFSHREES RS RBA
BRIBEIERR - BE W THRRZIELER
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2019 2018
—F-hF —E2-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FTBT
479,501 512,660
60,257 72,060
539,758 584,720
479,501 512,660
60,257 72,060
539,758 584,720
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6 OTHER INCOME

Rental income
Others

7 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain
— Forward contracts
— Other exchange gain/(loss)

Fair value (loss)/gain on investment
properties (note 17)

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

6
BEWA
Hit
7
B (F18) W - TR
—EHEYN
— HtfE R W (EE)
REMENDAE(BR),
W (YEE17)
HEBTEERIE

HAUWA

mEMBREME
2019 2018
—F-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz Tz

896 840

327 154

1,223 994

Hit (B518), /Wa - FH

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz Tz
(2,771) -
1,947 (1,631)
(1,400) 3,400
(®) (1,652)
(2,232) 117
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) are the Group’s chief operating decision-makers.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the Executive Directors for the
purposes of allocating resources and assessing performance.

The Group’s reportable operating segments are as follows:

— Architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom collections
and others segment — importing, wholesale and retail of
architectural builders’ hardware and bathroom collections
and others

— Kitchen collection and furniture segment — designing,
importing, wholesale, retail and installation of kitchen
collections and furniture

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used
in its consolidated financial statements prepared under
HKFRSs.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on the measure of gross profit.
Other operating income and expenses are not allocated to the
operating segments as the information is not regularly
reviewed by the Executive Directors.

Segment assets include all assets but exclude current income
tax recoverable, deferred income tax assets, investment
properties, restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents,
property, plant and equipment related to the office premises of
the Group and other corporate assets which are managed on
central basis and are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities but exclude current and
deferred income tax liabilities, borrowings (excluding trust
receipt loans), derivative financial liabilities and other
corporate liabilities which are managed on central basis and
are not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNnTD) 8 EER @)
2019
—F-NF
Architectural
builders’
hardware, Kitchen
bathroom collection
collections and
and others furniture Total
EERSE -
ERRE BHERE
REA RAERM et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FER FET
Reportable segment revenue AERzHIEF DB
from external customers 390,722 149,036 539,758
Reportable segment cost of sales TEH > 5L ER A& (225,889) (103,065) (328,954)
Reportable segment gross profit aE#H > 5 & EF 164,833 45,971 210,804
Depreciation of property, ME -  BERBEINE
plant and equipment (2,886) (4,090) (6,976)
(Provision)/reversal of provision BREFE (BE) BERD
for inventory obsolescence (751) 2,882 2,131
Reportable segment assets AEHRZHHPEE 305,997 96,060 402,057
Additions to non-current segment FERNFERBOIEEZFE
assets during the year 2,618 15,376 17,994
Reportable segment liabilities AEHRzHBEE 74,219 43,797 118,016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTD)

Reportable segment revenue
from external customers
Reportable segment cost of sales T E R 2 75 SR EHE R AR

Reportable segment gross profit TIER D EER

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Provision for inventory obsolescence Bz &E#4

Write-back of provision BRI ER R ERRE
for impaired receivables

3% BERRBITE

Reportable segment assets
Additions to non-current segment
assets during the year

AER 2D HEE
FEAIFREDF

Reportable segment liabilities AERSHERE

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

A ER IR F o EB

HMEEZRE

8 oEHER @

A VBRI

2018
—E-N\F
Architectural
builders’
hardware, Kitchen
bathroom collection
collections and
and others furniture Total
BERS -
EsEE BEXE
R EHA AR “Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FET
434,565 150,155 584,720
(263,365) (82,054) (345,419)
171,200 68,101 239,301
(3,511) (1,627) (5,138)
(380) (666) (1,046)
233 - 233
344,428 95,448 439,876
1,717 8,642 10,359
67,926 68,626 136,552
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTD)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in
the consolidated financial statements as follows:

Reportable segment gross profit AIEH = 5 5 EF
Group gross profit £EER
Reportable segment assets AERZOHEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BERZE
Investment properties REWME
Deferred income tax assets BEFEHEE
Current income tax recoverable AU E A HAFR 15
Restricted cash ZRERE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY
Other corporate assets Hithb ¥ EE
Group assets SEEE

DEBER (@)

REBETEREEDMBETERERKEER
BUBRR TR BBEHROT ¢

2019 2018
—E-hfF =t SIS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FBT
210,804 239,301
210,804 239,301
402,057 439,876
104,091 107,935
34,700 36,100
4,767 4,491
7,983 1,973

- 3,008

66,365 62,357
354 271
620,317 656,011

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019 F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Reportable segment liabilities

Borrowings

Current income tax liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities
Other corporate liabilities

Group liabilities

Geographical information

Hong Kong (domicile)
PRC

Total

SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTD) 8

AEH 2o HEE

EE
REFREHEE
TTEEmas
EEFEHEE
Hit bk B E

EEEE

DEBER (@)

A VBRI

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FHET
118,016 136,552
13,345 9,461
3,047 7,392
576 -
21,958 22,898
499 497
157,441 176,800

RiBE2HHNER

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets
(excluding financial
assets and deferred
income tax assets)

ERBEE (FEELHEE
AR I RIEEFEHEE)
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hF —B-\F =—B-AF Z—T-N\F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$O000
TR FH T T
BB (XTI 514,415 555,626 225,474 223,905
i 25,343 29,094 3,948 1,930
@t 539,758 584,720 229,422 225,835

The geographical location of customers is determined based
on the location at which the goods were delivered. The
geographical location of the non-current assets is determined
based on the physical location of the assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, no single customer
contributed over 10% of the Group’s revenue (2018: same).

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER
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RBEECHEMNEAREZEEZERNE
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Employee benefit expenses (note 11)
Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services
Cost of inventories (note 19)
Depreciation (note 16)
Operating lease charges in respect of
land and buildings
Direct operating expenses arising
from investment properties that
generated rental income
(Reversal of provision)/provision
for inventory obsolescence (note 19)
Write-back of provision for impaired
receivables (note 20)

9 FXZR

ETHEMH (MFE11)
B ETEN &

— BBRE

— R ERT
FERA (MEE19)
e (M 16)
TREFEERESTH

EEHASWACRENEERELEHS

BEFE (RERE) BHE (MEE19)

R E R UGB E (HEE20)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

*
*;
2019 2018
—F-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz Tz
77,589 79,203
2,368 2,368
148 120
304,992 317,693
13,086 10,305
53,774 55,310
103 109
(2,131) 1,046
- (233)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 BHEHR  F5H
2019 2018
—F-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Finance costs BB
Bank borrowings RITERK 1,033 897
Finance income B A
Interest income FIB A (76) (99)
Finance costs, net MEER B 957 798
11 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 11 BEIREMNXZH
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and allowances, including FEREM  BEEEMS (EE12)
directors’ emoluments (note 12) 74,605 73,724
Pension costs — defined contribution BRERA — REMRTE
plans 2,984 2,979
Other long-term employee benefits HitREEER - 2,500
77,589 79,203
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND 12 EZw®AKERZR AL &S H M

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AL
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) ESZHMH
The aggregate amount of emoluments paid or payable to ENHEENERARNES M ESETENT ¢

the directors of the Company are as follows:

2019
—E-NF
Employer’s
contribution
Salaries to retirement

Directors’ and benefit
fees bonus scheme Total
RERIK
=X 0k FEREA HET & @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FTERT FTET TET FTER
Executive directors #HTES
TSE Sun Fat, Henry WEE (EFF)

(Chairman) 100 3,281 18 3,399
TSE Sun Wai, Albert WEE 100 4,915 - 5,015
TSE Sun Po, Tony HEH (ESAKE)

(Managing Director) 100 4,173 18 4,291
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin L 100 3,108 18 3,226
LAU Shiu Sun 235 100 1,774 18 1,892
Independent non-executive ByF#iTES

directors
LEUNG Kwong Kin, J. P. PN AT+ 108 - - 108
WONG Wah, Dominic i 108 - - 108
WAN Sze Chung BEE 108 - - 108

824 17,251 72 18,147
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (conTD)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (cont’d)

Executive directors

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
(Chairman)

TSE Sun Wai, Albert

TSE Sun Po, Tony
(Managing Director)

TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

LAU Shiu Sun

Independent non-executive
directors

LEUNG Kwong Kin, J. P.

WONG Wah, Dominic

WAN Sze Chung

HiTES
L (EFF)

HHE
AHE (EBAEE)

A
i

BIFHTESE
RNE AT+

BE

gy

12 ESZEAREERAEERSH MW

AL @
(a) EEZHM (&)

2018
—E-N\F

Employer's

contribution

Salaries  to retirement

Directors’ and benefit
fees bonus scheme Total

RERIK
EEHe FeRA HEt 8l @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FEx FiEx FET
100 3,300 18 3,418
100 4,922 - 5,022
100 4,160 18 4,278
100 3,092 18 3,210
100 1,754 18 1,872
108 - - 108
108 - - 108
108 - - 108

824

No directors have waived or agreed to waive their
emoluments in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019

(2018: Nil).

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (conTD)

(b)

©)

(d)

(e)

U]

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2018: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group does
not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2018: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors

As at 31 March 2019, there are no loans, quasi-loans or
other dealings in favour of the directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors (2018: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved as disclosed in note 32, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Key management personnel

The Group regards the executive directors as the key
management personnel. Details of the remuneration paid
to them are set out in (a).

12 EFEvRANRESZREERS M
AL @

(b) EBZERANZRERER
FA- BEESC WIS REE[R
ARABERBERBERN (ZF-N\F &) o

(c) HERHESRBMATFE=SNRE

REBE-_Z-hF=A=+—HLEFE
REBSEREME=FTRH{ESRY
mEEZARE(ZE-NF &) -

(d PES ZIZFEEZFNZEABER
ZEENHETBRHEMER - 8ol
EXHEREENHMBRS

RZZE-NF=ZA=+—R0 HTELGE
T ZREESEHNEABBRZE
ENBEEFBREBTAER  BUER
REREENHMERZ(ZE—NF:
&) o

() EREXRS THIARMNENER

BRRMEE 2R B EIN  REEARFE
B AQBAWEBITEMELAEEER
HEMALRESHENBEEELTE
FEAEBCEERS ZHNER -

(f) EBEREEAR
FEERRBATESHHEREEAS -
XN TFRENHEHBEERE @ E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND 12 EZw®AKERZR AL &S H M

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (conTD) AL @)
(g) Five highest paid individuals (99 TEBESHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest FREAEEzLAEGESFMALTEREDN
in the Group for the year include four (2018: four) V(ZE-NF O ES BEHME
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis EHNBEREXIIRZOHA - FREX
presented above. The emoluments paid or payable to NEEXNTFAEHS WA L 2
the five highest paid individuals during the year are as mT
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT FTHET
Salaries and allowances e 18,820 18,434
Pension costs — defined contribution  RkE&RHA — REMREE
plans 72 72
18,892 18,506
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MENFUTEE :
Number of individuals
A
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Emolument bands (in HK$) FENAE BRI (B T)
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 8 7T & 3,000,000 8 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 & 7t Z 3,500,000 & 7T 2 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7% 7T Z 4,000,000 & 7T - -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 & 7T Z 4,500,000 & 7T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 & 7T £ 5,000,000 & 7T - -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7t £ 5,500,000 3 7T 1 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 & 7T Z 6,000,000 & 7T - -

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER 149



150

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

13

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group

is 25% (2018: 25%) for the year.

Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax

PRC enterprise income tax
(Over)/under provision in prior years

Total current tax

Deferred taxation (note 26)

Income tax expense

B A% IR

EBREH
RS

FF (BRERE) FHRTR

ENEAH IR AR AR
IESERR (MEE26)

FEBiRX

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic tax
rates in the region in which the Group operates as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at domestic tax
rates applicable to profits in

the respective region

Effect of tax reduction in current year
(Over)/under provision in prior years

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Utilisation of previously unrecognised

tax losses
Unrecognised tax losses

Tax expense for the year

PR A 1S B AT A

AR EEREAN
S R el OF R

REERBRONWEZE
EF (BEREE) FHRTE
BAERBUWA
TAMNBL R X
BABERERREEE

RERRIAGE

REEREMT

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 16.0% (2018:
16.4%). The decrease is caused by a change in the
profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in the respective

regions.

P <

A VBRI

BAENBRDURNFEMFTERBERIZHRE
16.5% (=& — J\F : 16.5%) sHIZEHE - AR
FE > AEETERBLATINERREE25%

(ZB—NF 125%) °

2019 2018
—E-hE —s-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHR T
5,511 11,263
236 12
(248) 551
5,499 11,826
(1,235) (2,438)
4,264 9,388

REBABRBIRAER < HIRERERAR
EEREEFENBE 2 REMHE 2 EmiiaE

ZEREWT ¢

Group

REE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTRT T
19,349 53,582
3,055 8,763
(220) (327)
(248) 551
(14) (560)
425 734
(740) (869)
2,006 1,096
4,264 9,388

BRAMEFEEIHEE160% (=T —\F:
16.4%) > BEARAD JIHRAE BB A T RIEE

tEMBRED BB -

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019 F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A VBRI

14 DIVIDENDS 14 BRE
(a) Dividends declared and paid during the year (a) REAFEEHRKBEZRE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHER T
Final dividend in respect of 2018 of ZE-NEF2RPREER25E
HK2.5 cents (2018: in respect of (=B N\E . =B—tE>
2017 of HK2.5 cents) per share REREER2.584L) 15,015 15,015
Interim dividend in respect of 2019 of —B—AFE2HERESRK 1B
HK1 cent (2018: in respect of 2018 of (ZZB—NF: ZZE—-N\F2
HK1 cent) per share FHEIR B SRR 184L) 6,006 6,006
21,021 21,021
(b) Dividends for the year (b) EFEERE
2019 2018
=F-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FExT
Interim dividend of HK1 cent FHEIRR B AR 1B
(2018: HK1 cent) per share (ZT—N\E 1) 6,006 6,006
Proposed final dividend of HK1.5 cents ##R-REAR 2258 1.5 34
(2018: HK2.5 cents) per share (note) (=2 — /\4E : 2.5584L) (B3E) 9,009 15,015
15,015 21,021
Note: Final dividend have been proposed by the directors after the MisE : REIREMESNRE BBHERBRN -

reporting date. The proposed dividend, subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general

2019.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE 15 SR&EF
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the BRERGH DRIERDE A EENL
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by BRBRAFERND BRITEBRREHE -

the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2019 2018
—g-nE  —E-NE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fia5 Fia5
Profit attributable to equity RATFEEEERT
owners of the Company 15,085 44,194
Number of ordinary shares ERTERRBRE(TR)
in issue (thousands) 600,600 600,600
(b) Diluted (b) #H
Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March ARTRMERTEEHELBR  BH
2019 is the same as the basic earnings per share as E-T-NFZRA=T-HLFEZS
there were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares issued BREE RN EERENRNER(=F
(2018: same). —N\F  HRE) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% - BEKRREE

Leasehold land Furniture,
and buildings Leasehold  fixtures and Motor
(note) improvements  equipment vehicles Total
RELH HE B %8
KT (fit) ES3 e "E o
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR T T TR TERT
Net book value REFE
At 1 April 2017 RZE-+tEmA-H 153,000 11,296 999 371 165,666
Additions wE - 10,359 38 - 10,397
Disposal HE - (1,652) - - (1,652)
Depreciation (note 9) 18 (HE9) (4,897) (4,896) (344) (168) (10,305)
Revaluation Eff 25,497 - - - 25,497
Exchange difference EREE - 106 17 9 132
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-\E=A=1-H 173,600 15,213 710 212 189,735
Additions HE - 16,953 1,171 601 18,725
Disposal e - - (18) (45) (63)
Depreciation (note 9) 18 (M 9) (5,835) (6,684) (344) (223) (13,086)
Revaluation B (465) - - - (465)
Exchange difference ERER - (111) (8) (5) (124)
At 31 March 2019 RZB-NE=ZA=+-H 167,300 25,371 1,511 540 194,722
At 31 March 2018 R=Z-N\§=A=+-H
Valuation fhiE 173,600 - - - 173,600
Cost AR - 77,808 19,665 982 98,455
Accumulated depreciation ZitE - (62,595) (18,955) (770) (82,320
Net book amount EHFE 173,600 15,213 710 212 189,735
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-hFE=A=+-H
Valuation 4E 167,300 - - - 167,300
Cost A - 94,088 20,379 1,234 115,701
Accumulated depreciation ZEHIE - (68,717) (18,868) (694) (88,279)
Net book amount FEEE 167,300 25,371 1,511 540 194,722

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTD) 16 % - BE KRB @)

Note: MEE
If leasehold land and buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the HEELREFHRELRAEELEZS - BESEN
amounts would be as follows: T
2019 2018
=EB-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost R 34,804 34,804
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (7,086) (6,389)
Net book amount REFE 27,718 28,415
Bank borrowings are secured by the leasehold land and buildings in Hong $RATfE R A4 BRTE B 4 103,200,000 8 T (=B — N\ F :
Kong with a total carrying amount of HK$103,200,000 (2018: 107,500,0008 7T) 2 & B E + it R B F/EE IR (M=
HK$107,500,000) (note 24). 24) o
The following table analyses the leasehold land and buildings carried at fair TRUGEEINRDABIRZEE L REF -

value, by valuation method.

Fair value measurements using
RATHZREZAAERNE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active other unobservable
markets for observable inputs
identical assets inputs (Level 3)
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Note)
iR HEEEZ ERHM BX
ERTERE AHEEGARE FTUBRBARE
(£5—18) (=) (B=RE) (M=)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FTERT
As at 31 March 2019 R-ZB-NF=ZA=+—8
Recurring fair value measurements REMHARETE
— Leasehold land and buildings —HELHRIETF — — 167,300
As at 31 March 2018 RZZB-NF=ZA=+—8
Recurring fair value measurements REMDAARETE
— Leasehold land and buildings —HELTHRIEF - - 173,600
Note: For fair value measurement under Level 3, inputs for the asset or M ME=BETZAAENENS  SEREEZ
liability are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable BWABIEN LA EE TS IS (B R
inputs). ABIE) BER -
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value AEECHFEANHRER AR EBRR2BEB 2S4
hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that RERSHER  BREEAABEBRIEARES o
caused the transfer. There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 FR - E-B E_EBRE-EBHEILEES -

during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTD)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

Opening balance FHEE
Depreciation e

(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation REM2EBRER 2
recognised in other comprehensive B4 GRE) B
income

Closing balance FREEER

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were valued at 31
March 2019 by an independent professionally qualified valuer,
Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited, who holds a recognised
relevant professional qualification and has recent experience
in the locations and segments of the leasehold land and
buildings valued.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that reviews
the valuations performed by the independent valuer for
financial reporting purposes. This team reports directly to the
board of directors. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the review team and the valuer
annually.

Level 3 fair values of leasehold land and buildings have been
derived using the direct comparison approach, which basically
uses the comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market to derive the fair value of the properties. Sale
prices of comparable properties in close proximity are
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as time of
transactions, property size and location. The most significant
input into this valuation approach is the market unit rate.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

A VBRI

16 Y% - BEKRE @

MAEARTIBEGARE (F=F) 22 nE

e

Leasehold land and buildings

HETBRET

2019 2018
e —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHT
173,600 153,000

(5,835) (4,897)

(465) 25,497
167,300 173,600

FAEEZAERE
FEECHELTHRETHEIEESERM
EMNERENHMTERATIR-ZE-LF=
B=1+—BE  LHEEMSEHEERTEE
B BERABNEETHREFHRELER
D EPEITRE -

REBM BT - MBERE B NERS
MEEMATETAEZER  ZEBEEQE
SEER - HEERSFEAEMFRGEER
BRER -

HELHEEFCE=ZBAAENEREEL
BUEBH - EELEE-RAABEETS LT
ERCTEALBEERZEBMELAME - #
MibEAELBNECEBCHARZERE
EHERMBEETERH CERFHAR - b
HEEZBRERBABBATSEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTD)

Information about fair value measurements using

17

significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Unobservable inputs
TABREABE

Range of unobservable inputs
TUEERAHEHE

A VBRI

16 Y% - BEKRE @

FRNRAEATIBRGARE (=) 22
REFEZER

Relationship of unobservable
inputs

of fair value
DNAEMSRFITHRREAHE 2 BR

Market unit rate
miZEER

Office: HK$20,800 to HK$20,900
(2018: HK$21,800 to HK$21,900)
per square feet of saleable area

The higher the market unit rate,
the higher the fair value
TSEERES  AREHES

WAZE  BAERSFHR20,800/8 7T
F20,900/8 7T (=F—/\F : 21,800/8 T

£21,900%7T)

Shop: HK$85,000 (2018: HK$86,000)
per square feet of saleable area

5 - BREES T 5 R85,0008 7T
(=ZZ—\F : 86,000 7T)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the

year.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 1 April
Fair value (loss)/gain recognised in the
profit or loss

At 31 March

The fair value (loss)/gain on investment properties is included
in “Other (losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income (note 7).

RMmA—H
ERRER

R=B=+—H

The higher the market unit rate,
the higher the fair value
MEEERES  ARAEMS

FRGETEGRESS -

R AME(BB) W

17 REYE
2019 2018
=E-hF —E2-N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FHER FHET
36,100 32,700
(1,400) 3,400
34,700 36,100

REMENAAE(BER) WEDFARER
EWERAN [ Ef (EFR), W - F8E] (0
F7) e

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019 F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conTD) 17

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs:

A VBRI

REWE @)
EEEREATTBRHARBENA RGNS
MR :

Fair value measurements using
RATHIREZAABENE

Quoted prices

in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BR HEEE BERHM BX
ZERT S ABE THHE
HwE WA B WABE
(5—F) (B=FE) (B=18)
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THERT FHET FET
As at 31 March 2019 R-ZE-NAFE=ZA=+—H
Recurring fair value measurements &® M4 A R EHE
— Investment properties —REWFE - — 34,700
As at 31 March 2018 R=ZZ-NF=A=+—8H
Recurring fair value measurements &M A AEFE
— Investment properties —REME - — 36,100

As at 31 March 2019, valuations were undertaken by an
independent professionally qualified valuer, Memfus Wong
Surveyors Limited. The valuation processes are the same as
the revaluation of leasehold land and buildings held for own
use (note 16).

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Unobservable inputs
TRBREABE

Range of unobservable inputs
TUEERAMEHE

REZZE-AF=ZA=+—-B hEIFIHEB
VEXESERGEMITERENAMTERD
RAET - MEBREMSFEANEEL R
BF 2B AR (MEE16) -

FRRAREATABREBARE (E=B) 22
REFRZER

Relationship of unobservable
inputs of fair value
DAAEMSRFTEREAHIE 2 BR

Market unit rate
MSEEER

HK$21,100 (2018:HK$21,900) per
square feet of saleable area

ERAEESTEHR21,1008 T
(ZZ—N\F : 21,9008 7T)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques used

during the year.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

The higher the market unit rate,
the higher the fair value
THEEEZRES  AAEES

FRGELEGRERZS -

1165)/7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March

2019:

Name of subsidiary
WEARERE

Accord Sky Limited

Accord Sky Limited

Asia Bon Company Limited
ER(CEN EEEEERLT
Asia Richly Limited
TNERARAF

Bonco Ironmongery Limited
REDERMERDT

D.LY. Limited

D.IY. Limited

E. Bon Building Materials
Company Limited

BATRENRERLT
H20 (Pro) Limited
KZRERAH

Joint Oriental Limited
Joint Oriental Limited
Kitchen (Pro) Limited
BzRERAR

Massford (Hong Kong) Limited

XE (BB ARLT

Massford (Shanghai) Limited*

XE(LB)A2ERAA

158

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
i Vg avek

Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong
BE
Hong Kong
E#
Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong
BE
Hong Kong
3
Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong

]

PRC

HE

Particulars of
issued share capital
BRITRAFE

1,000,000 ordinary shares

1,000,000 A% 3 B A
100 ordinary shares
100RE BIR

1 ordinary share
1REBER

10,000 ordinary shares
10,000 RE B

2 ordinary shares
2REBR

6,000 ordinary shares

6,000 RE B

2 ordinary shares
2REBR

1 ordinary share
1REBR

1,000 ordinary shares
1,000 REBER

10,000 ordinary shares

10,000 RE B

US$250,000

250,000 % 70

Legal structure
EEEE

Company with limited
liabilities
BREELR

Company with limited
liabilities
BREELR

Company with limited
liabilities
BREEAT
Company with limited
liabilities
BREELR
Company with limited
liabilities
BREEDR

Company with limited
liabilities

ARELAT

ell}

Company with limited
liabilities

BREELR

Company with limited
liabilities

BREEDR

Company with limited
liabilities

AREELT

Company with limited
liabilities

BREELT

Wholly foreign owned
enterprise

2HERE

18 FIB R EH

-

=

A VBRI

N2
P

s

UFAR=F-AEZA=+-AZEBHE
AREE :

Equity interest held

FrERARYS
2019 2018
“g-nF  —F-NE
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Principal activities and
place of operation
TEXBREXNH

Retail sales of kitchen collections and furniture
through retail shops in Hong Kong
BRTEENE AT EHERRRBERER

Property holding in Hong Kong
REBENEEE
Property holding in Hong Kong
REBIENESE

Importing and sale of architectural builders’
hardware in Hong Kong
REBENRHERERS

Handling of human resources planning and
development activities of the Group
REEAKEANERRERRRER

Importing and sale of architectural builders’
hardware and bathroom collections in Hong
Kong

REBEORHERERSREARE

Importing and sale of bathroom collections in
Hong Kong
REBEORFEHARE

Handling of human resources planning and
development activities of the Group

BEFEEANERAIRBREE

Importing, sale and installation of kitchen
collections in Hong Kong

REBED  HERZEFERE

Supply of architectural builders’ hardware and
bathroom collections for property
development in Hong Kong

REBHERERSREMRET
NEBRER

Supplying architectural builders” hardware and
bathroom collections for property
development in Shanghai

RESHERERSREBRET
WERRER




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (conTD)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
Name of subsidiary establishment issued share capital Legal structure
WEARER o/ Ry BRTRAHE EELER
Oriental Longway Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Company with limited
liabilities
RERBERAR £ 1REBR BREELR
Right Century Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares Company with limited
liabilities
BHRERAR ) 1,000 RE BB BREELT
Shanghai Tech Pro PRC US$300,000 Wholly foreign owned
International Trading enterprise
Company Limited*
LSBREKESERRA & 300,000 % 7T 2HELE
Shanghai Techpro Interior PRC RMB5,000,000 Wholly foreign owned
Decoration Company enterprise
Limited*
DESREREMERAT  FE AR#5,000,000 7T 2HELE
Sunny Building and Hong Kong 6,000 ordinary shares Company with limited
Decoration Materials liabilities
Company Limited
FEEGHHHESTIREAR  BE 6,000 RE AR BREELT
N
Techpro Trading Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares Company with limited
liabilities
BREMESERDLA BE 1,000 REER BREEDR
VIA (Shanghai) Limited* PRC US$250,000 Wholly foreign owned
enterprise
BR (LB FAFEERAT FE 250,000 % 7T PHNEDE
* The English names of certain subsidiaries referred herein represent

management’s best effort in translating the Chinese names of these

subsidiaries as no English names have been registered.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

A VBRI

N2

18 Mt A B @)

Equity interest held

FERAER
2019 2018
“B-AF ZE-N\F
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

* HRLMEFHEQRLBERRER &

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEEBREX DY

Property holding in Hong Kong
REBENRES

Retail sales of bathroom accessories and
decoration materials through retail shops in
Hong Kong

ERTEENEETEREHARER

Importing and sale of architectural builders
hardware and bathroom collections in the
PRC

RPEEORHERRTEREARE

Undertaking interior decoration and project
management for property development
in the PRC

RAERBERRTRER ERRE T
WERREE

Retail sales of architectural builders hardware
and bathroom collections through retail
shops in Hong Kong

ERTEENERTEHERENSR
EARE

Importing and sale of architectural builders
hardware
ENRHERERS

Importing and sale of bathroom, furniture and
kitchen collections in Shanghai

REBEORHEEFR  BARBERRE

ERVEBHEERRBETXERWBLEZ -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

19 INVENTORIES 19 FE
2019 2018
—F-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTExT T
Finished goods KR 169,546 168,497
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included BRAFAIAFATHERST ] 2FERELR
in “cost of sales” amounted to HK$304,992,000 (2018: 304,992,000 jt (=& — J\ £ : 317,693,000
HK$317,693,000). BT °
As at 31 March 2019, finished goods with cost of AZE-NFZA=Z+—HB BRERBZH
HK$33,326,000 (2018: HK$35,813,000) were considered as X %33,326,000B (=% — \F :
obsolete. 35,813,000 7T) °
The movement in the provision for inventory obsolescence is BEEFERERZHOT
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Balance at beginning of the year FARE 35,813 34,163
(Reversal of provision)/provision BIRFEES (BERE),BE
for inventory obsolescence (2,131) 1,046
Exchange difference ERXER (356) 604
Balance at end of the year FRERR 33,326 35,813

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
. : : J



20 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES

AND CONTRACT ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Details of the trade, retention, other receivables and contract
assets as at 31 March 2019 are listed below:

Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment of
trade receivables

Retention receivables
Less: provision for impairment of
retention receivables

Amounts due from customers
for contract work

Contract assets

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Less: non-current portion
Retention receivables
Deposits and prepayments

Current portion

FE U BR X
B W ARFOR(E R

FE W 4R B2 5K
i EUR ERURERE

EWREF 2&H TR

BREE
HibEWR - ERANK

i FFENEE
FEYRfR EE 3R
BEREANK

BN R

All non-current receivables are due within five years from the

end of the respective reporting dates.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

20

A VBRI

FEURBRFR - FEUREREE 7% ~ H AU

RREHEE

REZZB-AF=ZA=T-BZBURERNX - BY
REXK - HbBEUHRRENEEERWT ¢

2019 2018
—E-hE —s-N\E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHR T
112,985 137,081
(630) (636)
112,355 136,445
3,790 5,368
(269) (287)
115,876 141,526
- 15,277
3,677 -
22,681 33,047
142,234 189,850
(3,477) (4,085)
(10,919) (13,985)
127,838 171,780

FrASERNIER 7 2 UGN HL S RSt R

FREH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES

AND CONTRACT ASSETS (conTD)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the reporting date

by invoice date is as follows:

1-90 days 1£90K
91-365 days 91 £ 365K
Over 365 days 1B 365 X

The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30
to 90 days, while some customers are granted an extended
credit period of up to 120 days.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a life time
expected loss allowance for all trade and retention receivables
and contract assets. Information about the impairment of
these receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk is
set out in note 3.1(c).

The movement in the provision of impairment for doubtful
debts is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year FEEER

Write-back of provision 2 IRE B W SRR 1
for impaired receivables

Exchange difference ERER

Balance at end of the year FRER

A VBRI

FEWERR - EWREB R - HibFEW
AREHEE @)

FEWEZ AR 2 B 2 IS (AR E A S E) H4F
wmE

2019 2018
—g-nE  —B-NE
HK$’000 HK$:000
FH FHT
78,001 107,702
21,931 16,778
12,963 12,601
112,985 137,081

REEZHEFEHABHRBI0EWNX M
BOEFHNEERIREREZERZ 120K

AEERASE B EHRE LD E IR LG
EEMEESE  FAMERIGRR R ERR
BRRANEENHRBERRE B5@EZ
ZRBFERERAEEEERKBRNERERN
fizE3.1 (c) ©

SERERESHNT :

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\E

HK$°000 HK$'000

it it

923 1,115

- (233)

(24) 41

899 923

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019 F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES

21

AND CONTRACT ASSETS (CONT’D)

As at 31 March 2019, provision of impairment for doubtful
debt of HK$899,000 (2018: HK$923,000) is recognised in
respect of customers that were in delinquency of payments, in
which the directors are of the opinion that whole outstanding
amount is expected not to be recovered.

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying values of trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values (2018: same).

Details of contract assets are as follows:

Contract assets related to contract work

Contract assets consist of unbilled amount resulting from
contract work when revenue recognised exceeds the amount
billed to the customer.

RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash ZIR4IES

As at 31 March 2018, restricted bank deposits of
HK$3,008,000 represented fixed term deposits placed with
commercial banks and were pledged against performance
bonds granted to the Group (note 31).

The effective interest rate on restricted bank deposits was
0.5% per annum as at 31 March 2018.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

BEEHIRNENEE

20

21

A VBRI

FEUBRFN - EIWRE R - HibEW
AREHNEE @

R=B-NF=B=+—A REFERER
T 2 ) 5% B 6 (16 79,899,000 % 7 (=
—J\FF © 923,000387T) - EEHMEE A UK
BB AERE -

AZE-NFZA=Z+—B  BRERERREM
WSz REEREARERE (ZE-N\F
HE) -

BHREEFENT :

31 March 1 April

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

=H=+—8H MA—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHER FHET

3,677 1,322

BHEEERCEIANSEBBATFRERKRE

WEBmEENARBEESE -
ZREIRE
2019 2018
—B-nE Y Sy
HK$’000 HK$'000
T Tt
- 3,008

R-B-N\E=A=+-0 SRHRGTEHR
3,008,0003% 7L 1517 N B 4047 2 EHI T 2L -
BEAEAREEEEBAREZERS (H
5E31) °

RZZ-NEF=A=+—0  ZRHRITEX
ZEBRERER0.5% e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 RMERREZEEY
2019 2018
—F-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT T
Cash at bank and on hand RITFREFERE 66,365 62,357
As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s cash and bank balances of RZZB-AFZA=+—-0 FEEZHER
approximately HK$5,118,000 (2018: HK$10,017,000) are 88 17 45 £ #95,118,000%8 T(= & — \ &
deposited with banks in the PRC, where the remittance of 10,017,000 T) EFATB 2 R1T  ERF
funds is subject to foreign exchange control. SMNERBIE ) o
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was RZZE-NF=ZA=+—H  BEHRITERZ
0.11% (2018: 0.09%) per annum as at 31 March 2019. ERFRNEBR0.11% (ZZ—/\F 1 0.09%) °
23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 23 ENERRREMESRRENER
CONTRACT LIABILITIES
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FTEx
Trade payables FE(FBERR 27,306 36,063
Accrued charges and other payables FEFHE AR H AL TR 11,349 12,949
Amounts due to customers BAEFZE&HNIREMN
for contract work - 2,288
Contract liabilities EHEE 54,118 -
92,773 51,300

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The ageing analysis of the trade payables at the reporting
date by invoice date is as follows:

0-90 days 0ZE90 XK
91-365 days 91 £ 365K
Over 365 days #8365 X

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying values of trade and other
payables approximate their fair values (2018: same).

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Contract liabilities for unsatisfied
performance obligations

AEHNEEEHNEE

Contract liabilities consist of consideration received (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer for
unsatisfied performance obligations.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period in relation to
carried-forward contract liabilities:

Revenue recognised that was included
in the contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the year

SRS

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

FAFHENEBRERN

A VBRI

23 BENRRRAEMEARRENEE

(%)

FEN BRI IR E B 2 fRl (LB RAFE) 247
LU

2019 2018

—E-NF —E2-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHER FHET

26,696 36,003

605 53

5 7

27,306 36,063

REZZB-NF=ZA=+—B EAERIARHEM

ENRZEEEEEAARERE (ZE-N\F

HE) e

BREEFENT

31 March 1 April

2019 2018

—E-NF —ZE-NF

=A=+—H mA—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

54,118 58,484

BHEEEEMRARABRNEIEREFPRE (R
FHBAESHE) -

TRETHAESHABERNABREHETD
R esE:

2019
e
HK$’000
Fi#

50,104
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #&#&

24 BORROWINGS

Current BN HA
Secured BiEH
— Bank loans —RITER
Unsecured mIEA
— Trust receipt loans — EREREBER
— Bank loans —IRITER

Trust receipt loans are mainly denominated in HK$ or Euro.
All bank loans are denominated in HKS$.

At 31 March 2019, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as
follows:

Within one year —F R
In the second year F-FR
In the third to fifth year F=EEFELFR

Bank borrowings of HK$3,018,000 (2018: HK$4,367,000) are
secured by leasehold land and buildings of the Group of
HK$103,200,000 (2018: HK$107,500,000) (note 16).

The fair value of borrowings, which carry interest at floating
rates, equals their carrying amounts.

24 Ft TA

2019 2018
—F-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz T#x
3,018 4,367
23,242 31,921
10,327 5,094
36,587 41,382

FRBBERZEEERRBIREE - IF
RITERZEEERRBT -

R=B-AE=A=+—R AREARE
ERAT :

2019 2018
—B-nE BN

HK$’000 HK$'000

T Tt

34,942 38,375

1,373 1,377

272 1,630

36,587 41,382

iR 17 1& F3,018,0008 nt( = & — N\ &F:

4,367,000 7T ) 2 LA & B8 A 103,200,000
Bt (=ZZF— N\ :107,500,000/8 T) 2 E
T KA FAEI IR (FFEE16) ©

HATBREZ EHR2 A A ESHEEEE -

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019 F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

24 BORROWINGS (CONT'D) 24 {3 (&)
The Group had the following undrawn borrowing facilities: AEEBEUTRBAZERESE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
Floating rate: SEENRIE
— Expiring within one year — —FREH 221,329 215,324
The effective interest rate is 2.7% (2018: 2.3%) for the year BE-Z-NFZA=ZT-BLEEZERF
ended 31 March 2019. RE2T7% (ZE—N\F 123%) °
25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25 fTHE€mTA
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
BE =R EE 8f&
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHER FET FET FHET
Not qualified for hedge FREHPETER
accounting
Foreign exchange forward SHNEEREH  BHE
contract, at market value (HMtE)
(Note) - (576) - -
Note: FieE
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign exchange forward REZZB-NERZZ-NFZA=Z+—HERTEZH
contracts as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: EERHENZEERS LSBT ¢
2019 2018
—g-Nf -z n#F
HK$°000 HK$000
FERT FET
Sell USD for Euro BEHETLEE 17,627 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

26 DEFERRED TAXATION 26 ELEFTBH
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHER FHET
Deferred income tax assets EEFREHERE 4,767 4,491
Deferred income tax liabilities EELEFREHas (21,958) (22,898)
(17,191) (18,407)
The movements in gross deferred income tax assets and REERBERRBH AR ENIKHEERAT -
liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration the REECREMSHEERGGELEEFHNM
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as T
follows:
Deferred income tax assets BEMESHEE
Decelerated tax
Tax losses depreciation Provision Total
BIERR RERERE BB it

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“BE-nE ZE-N\F ZB-AF B\ ZE-nf ZE-N\F -ZB-NE ZE-A\F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000
TER TER FER TER FER FER THR TER

At 1 April REA—H 1,537 382 4,606 3,484 1,893 1,717 8,036 5,583
Credited/(charged) to 3t A /(318) 8%

profit or loss 762 1,155 1,177 1,122 (625) 14 1,314 2,291
Exchange difference  ERZE - - - - (96) 162 (96) 162
At 31 March R=A=+-H 2,299 1,537 5,783 4,606 1,172 1,893 9,254 8,036

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

26 DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT’D)

Deferred income tax liabilities

Revaluation of
properties
MEE
2019 2018
“E-RE  ZE-N\E
HK$’000 HK$'000

IEIE P51 (@)
BB ERE

Accelerated tax
depreciation Total
MERERE st
2019 2018 2019 2018

—E-AE ZE-N\E ZE-AE ZE-N\R
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TR TERT TERT FExT FER TEn
At 1 April HUA—A 26,207 22,000 236 383 26,443 22,383
(Credited)/charged to GtA) /B EAL
other comprehensive ZHEWE
income (77) 4,207 - - (77) 4,207
(Credited)/charged to (FtA) /HBER
profit or loss - - 79 (147) 79 (147)
At 31 March R=A=+-—H 26,130 26,207 315 236 26,445 26,443

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has not recognised deferred
income tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
HK$15,463,000 (2018: HK$10,569,000) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and
entities. These tax losses utilisation will expire as follows:

RZE-NE=ZA=+—8  ~EENRER
BB R IEEE15,463,0008 T (ZF— )\
F 110,569,000 T) 2 EEFMEBHEE » It
DHREEBRERIRERNEHERM
= RRAK A BEES R T A LUK S5 88
B - ZEHEFEIHANT :

2019 2018

—E-NF —ZE-N\F

HK$°000 HK$’000

THERT FHET

In the first to fifth year inclusive E-FEELFAN(BREEWE) 15,463 10,569

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$851,000 as at 31 March
2019 (2018: HK$930,000) have not been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings
totalled HK$17,027,000 at 31 March 2019 (2018:
HK$18,591,000). The Group does not intend to remit these
unremitted earnings from the relevant subsidiaries to the
Company in the foreseeable future.

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

RZE-hE=ZA=+—B  WERHELT
RE BT 2 FEN B R HAth B IE MR IR L Fr
BF & 1E851,000 T (==& —JLF : 930,000
BRX)  RZE—-NF=ZA=Z+—H  REZR
A& % 517,027,0008 T( = F — N\ F:
18,591,000 5t) - NEBIL MITER I B &
REARDBAEREM B A R ZRERF
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27

28

A VBRI

SHARE CAPITAL 27 B
2019 2018
ZE-hE “Z-N\F
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
RBEE FER RHEE TEn
Authorised: SERE
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each BREEIABTZEBR
At 1 April and 31 March ROB—BK
=A=t—H 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREHEEM:
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each EREEIBITZZER
At 1 April REUA—H 600,600,000 60,060 600,600,000 60,060
At 31 March R=A=+-H 600,600,000 60,060 600,600,000 60,060
RESERVES 28 1B

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
90 and 91.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
certain subsidiaries of the Company are required to
appropriate certain percentage of their profits after tax to the
respective statutory reserves. Subject to certain restrictions as
set out in the relevant PRC regulations, this statutory reserve
may be used to reduce any losses incurred or for
capitalisation as paid-up capital of the PRC subsidiary.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share
premium account of the group companies acquired pursuant
to the group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 22
March 2000, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represented contribution surplus made by
the then shareholders to certain subsidiaries of the Company
before the group reorganisation on 22 March 2000.

AEEZRHEELBHFBHNEORIN EZEH
EREEEE -

EEME

BHEEBRRARERS  AATETHWERR
AREBZEERBEHR  TERARHERE
MERETHEDL - BRIBEABERERZ2E
TR ZEERBUTEETEWEAREE
ZEMEERRESHREREAERL -

SO

AEEZ SHRBHTERS HEEREN=
SETF=A-t+-AEEEA(EE) K
BEEREATEEZROBERZE It
EERBAERRTAATCBIRAZEME -

B
BEXARBER-ZEZRF-A-T-HEEE
HAERRREAARAETHERAR ZHER
g4 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Finance income
Fair value loss/(gain) on
investment properties
(Reversal of provision)/provision
for inventory obsolescence
Write-back of provision
for impaired receivables
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on forward contracts
Depreciation

Operating profit before working
capital changes
Inventories

Trade, retention and other receivables

Contract assets
Trade and other payables,

provision and receipts in advance

Contract liabilities

Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash

Cash generated from operations

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

A VBRI

29 HEREBEHR
(a) BEFBDEEZRLAE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHx FET
B PR EBL AT A 19,349 53,582
BT 545 E AR -
BHS LA 1,033 897
B WA (76) (99)
BEMEARERR, (KE)
1,400 (3,400)
BRFE (BHERE) BE
(2,131) 1,046
EiR AR ERE
- (233)
HENE BERREZHE
8 1,652
EHANEE 2,771 -
e 13,086 10,305
LEESHBE 2 LEEF
35,440 63,750
e 9,981 (23,124)
FEURBRER - FE U B 2K 2 L At FE U 2K 34,428 (39,970)
BHEE (2,432) -
FER IR R AR R
BB R I W E (9,972) 11,085
Bhar (4,361) -
SREBEFD, (M) 3,008 (27)
EEELETERS 66,092 11,714
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONT’D) 29 BWEREBER @)
(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (b) HEVE BERIEBZAERE
equipment
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds REEHRERERAN HEYE BE
from disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: RFBBZAEHIAESE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FTET
Net book amount (note 16) BRTEFHE (M 16) 63 1,652
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BERRHEZ
plant and equipment (note 7) B8 (M 7) (8) (1,652)

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE BMERSREZ

plant and equipment FrigsE 55 -
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial (c) BMETHELENEEHIE

activities

Borrowings

(RS

HK$°000

FHET

As at 1 April 2017 R-ZE—+tFWmA—A 38,115

Cash flows HEeRhE 3,267

As at 31 March 2018 R=ZZE-N\F=ZA=+—H 41,382

Cash flows BeRe (4,795)

As at 31 March 2019 R-ZE-hFE=HA=+-—H 36,587

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

30 COMMITMENTS 30 A&IE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAXREE
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had the following capital RZZE-NAFE=ZA=+—-8B x*&EH
commitments not provided for: LT ARFHEEBENEARRE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FTHET
Contracted but not provided for: BRI HERFTIREE -
Property, plant and equipment WE - BERRE 765 -
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHEEHRE
(i) Operating lease commitments — group company () RBEHERE — FEREFERE
as lessee A
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had future REZB-NAF=ZA=+—-B X&
aggregate minimum lease payments under non- EREATHEZ L REFLEE
cancellable operating leases in respect of land and HEMNARRZ A 2 HEHENK
buildings as follows: BEMT ¢
2019 2018
ZE-hEF —ZET-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Within one year —F R 50,410 46,686
In the second to fifth year inclusive E-SZ%hER(BIEEEME) 87,750 101,696
More than five years ZRESF - 17,199
138,160 165,581
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

30 COMMITMENTS (CONT’D) 30 ZEE @
(b) Operating lease commitments (cont’d) (b) R&EHEEAEE)
(ii) Operating lease commitments — group company (i) HREHERE — KEARFERHL
as lessor A
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had future R-ZZ-hF=ZB=+—-8B &&
aggregate minimum lease receivable under non- ERBETITHE 2 RENELENR
cancellable operating leases in respect of EmMRARRENREEENHRELE
investment properties as follows: wmE
2019 2018
—EB-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FTEx
Within one year —ER 936 350
In the second to fifth year inclusive S—-&Z%hER(BEEERE) 390 -
1,326 350
31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 HAAE
As at 31 March 2019, performance bonds of approximately RZB-AF=ZA=+—-0 FEEEAEF
HK$20,044,000 (2018: HK$20,748,000) have been issued by B B RFEH 20,044,000 8 T (ZFE—N\F :
the Group to customers as security of contracts. No restricted 20,748,000 B T) FRENER - X E(ZF
cash (2018: HK$3,008,000) was held as security for the —J\£F : 3,008,0008 T) FRFRSHERLY
performance bonds. REFEZLER -

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BEAELXRS
In addition to the transactions/information disclosed elsewhere REEHBRERAREZRS BRI RE
in these consolidated financial statements, during the year, FER FAEEGHEEBEALTETUTRS !

the Group had the following transactions with related parties:

(a) Related party relationship Nature of transaction 2019 2018
BEALTBEE RHEME —ZE-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FET
A company under common control of ~ Rental expenses paid to
certain directors of the Company Negotiator Consultants Limited
(note) (“NCL")
—EERARATETESHREZESH 2 AE (MEE) X1FF Negotiator Consultants Limited
(TNCL) 2 £B% 4,032 2,820
Note: NCL is a company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE MizE : NCLAARRRESHIELE - WHEL
Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, & HHEEERWERELEEEERE
Kevin, directors of the Company, have beneficial interests. The Bm2AR c HEMXERRERBREDR
rental expenses were paid in the normal course of business at REMENCLERRE ZIRR AT ©
terms mutually agreed between the Group and NCL.
(b) Balances with related parties (b) BEEATZEHE
2019 2018
—E—-hF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Other receivables from HAoth R RS
— NCL — NCL 255 255
Balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on EHRABEKT  RERERBRERER -
demand. The carrying amounts approximate their fair REEHEAAREEE(ZE-NF M
values (2018: same). &) e

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S& & HmERME

33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33 ARAMBRREREHEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

R-BE—hEFE=ZRA=+—H

2019 2018
—ZE-AF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset IRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries MiB AR ER 90,918 90,918
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL BB D T FRIE 140,902 118,314
Other receivables H R 25 25
Current income tax recoverable AT Y B A< A F 1S B 194 -
Cash and cash equivalents HERESEEY 105 581
______ 141226 118,920
Total assets BEE 232,144 209,838
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity RRBREEEGER
holders of the Company
Share capital PR 60,060 60,060
Reserves #H (a) 64,305 65,189
Total equity FERBE 124,365 125,249
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables H A FE 5K 2,589 2,489
Current income tax liabilities AHEFFSHAE - 116
Amounts due to subsidiaries ENAHEARRE 105,190 81,984
______ 107,779 84,589
Total equity and liabilities EnkBEAHE 232,144 209,838

RARHHMRARCKLESER T —NEFX
BZHRB#tE IR THESAREE -

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2019 and
were signed on its behalf.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry TSE Sun Po, Tony

A e
Director Director
EE B

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(CONTD)

Note:

(a) Reserve movement of the Company

At 1 April 2017
Profit for the year
Dividends (note 14(a))

At 31 March 2018

At 1 April 2018
Profit for the year
Dividends (note 14(a))

At 31 March 2019

BRTERERRAA-_Z-NAEFER

R=ZE—t&MA—H
R
AR 2 (5 14(a))

RZ2-N\F=A=1+—-H
R-ZZB-N\FHEA—H
FEHEA

BB (M 14(a))

R=B-NF=ZA=+—H

33

A VBRI

RN B IEARR R R AE 2B ()

BIEE

(@) AREFFERED

Retained
earnings Total
REEF st
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
85,127 85,127
1,083 1,083
(21,021) (21,021)
65,189 65,189
65,189 65,189
20,137 20,137
(21,021) (21,021)
64,305 64,305
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Five-Year Financial Summary E&HERE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—B-nE —EB-N\E —Z-t+t& =—B-XF —B-HE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$O000

FER FET FERT FERT FET
Results ¥E
Profit attributable to equity AABFEE
holders of the Company FE{RER
15,085 44,194 42,307 78,377 65,910
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—2-NE —ZT-N\F =Tt =ZT-XE =-ZT-IEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET FiER FERT FET
Assets and liabilities BERAE
Total assets REE 620,317 656,011 582,865 613,998 600,890
Total liabilities Bmes (157,441) (176,800) (151,001) (189,163) (212,011)
Shareholders’ equity IR RS 462,876 479,211 431,864 424,835 388,879

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the five HAEBEBEZE-Z-AFE=A=+-ALIEAEFES
years ended 31 March 2019 have been prepared on a consolidated &Hz%#%& - EEREBENRGEAEERR -
basis.
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